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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Board of Finance
Town of Stonington, Connecticut

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Stonington, Connecticut, as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the Town’s basic financial statements as listed in the
table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Town's management. Our
responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
the significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the Town of Stonington, Connecticut, as of June 30, 2011, and the respective changes in
financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the
general fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 29,
2011, on our consideration of the Town's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and the Schedules of Funding Progress and Employer Contributions - Stonington
Retirement System and Other Post-Employment Benefits Plans on Pages 4 through 12 and Pages 58 and 59,
respectively, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a
part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries,
the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.



Board of Finance
Town of Stonington, Connecticut
Page Two

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Town of Stonington, Connecticut’s basic financial statements. The combining and
individual nonmajor fund financial statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are
not a required part of the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of
federal awards and the schedule of expenditures of state financial assistance are presented for purposes of
additional analysis as required by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of
State and Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations and the State Single Audit Act and are also
not a required part of the basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund
financial statements, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and the schedule of expenditures of
state financial assistance are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Town of Stonington, Connecticut’s basic financial statements. The introductory section and
trend information are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements. Such information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on it.
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New London, Connecticut
December 29, 2011



TOWN OF STONINGTON

152 Elm Street Stonington, Connecticut 06378

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2011

As management of the Town of Stonington, Connecticut, we offer readers of the Town of Stonington's
financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Town of
Stonington for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. Please read it in conjunction with the Town’s
financial statements immediately following this section.

Financial Highlights

+ The assets of the Town exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by
$108,017,810 (net assets).

+ The Town's total net assets increased by $4,253,227. Factors leading to this increase include
favorable operations in the Town’s internal service fund, a decrease in the compensated absences
liability and an increase to the net pension asset.

+ As of the close of the current fiscal year, the Town's governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $16,011,835, a decrease of $37,811 in comparison with the prior year.

¢+ At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the general fund was
$11,559,991, or 21% of total general fund budgetary expenditures and transfers.

+  The Town of Stonington's total long-term debt decreased by $3,310,984 during the current fiscal
year. The key factor for this decrease was the principal payments on current debt, and no
issuance of new bonds.

Overview of the Basic Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Town of Stonington's basic
financial statements. The Town's basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-
wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the basic financial statements. The
statement of fiduciary net assets is used to present financial information about activities for which the
Town acts solely as an agent for the benefit of employees and others.

Government-wide financial statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the
Town's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the Town's assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may
serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Town is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the Town's net assets changed during the
most recent fiscal year, All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise



to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses reported
in this statement are for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g.,
uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Town that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are
intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges. The
governmental activities of the Town include general government, public safety, highway department,
sanitation and waste removal, health and welfare, library, recreation, education, and interest expense.

Fund financial statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Town uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the Town can be divided into
three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable
resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such
information may be useful in evaluating a Town's near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the Town's near-term financing decisions. Both
the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and
changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental
funds and governmental activities.

The Town maintains 25 individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and
changes in fund balances for the General Fund, Bonded Capital Projects, Sewer Usage Fund, and
Planning and Developing Grant Fund, which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other 21
governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of

these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements on Schedules 4 and
5.

The Town adopts an annual budget for its General Fund. A budgetary comparison statement has been
provided for the General Fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

Proprietary funds

The Town maintains one type of proprietary fund. Internal service funds are an accounting device used to
accumulate and allocate costs internally among the Town's various functions. The Town uses internal
service funds to account for its self-insured medical benefits. Because these services predominantly
benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, they have been included within governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements.



Fiduciary funds

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the Town.
Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of
those funds are not available to support the Town's own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary
funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.

Notes to the basic financial statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in
the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain
required supplementary information concerning the Town's progress in funding its obligation to provide
pension and other post employment benefits to its employees.

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds are
presented immediately following the required supplementary information on pensions and other post
employment benefits.

Government-Wide Financial Analysis

TOWN OF STONINGTON, CONNECTICUT

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
2011 2010

Current and other assets $ 25,969,022 $ 24,802,999
Capital assets (net) 120,013,702 121,533,515
Total assets 145,982,724 146,336,514
Current liabilities 7,628,469 7,580,332
Long-term liabilities 30,336,445 34,294,320
Total liabilities 37,964,914 41,874,652

Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 88,872,739 86,773,619
Restricted 350,232 161,583
Unrestricted 18,794,839 17,526,660
Total net assets $ 108,017,810  $ 104,461,862

, .
As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position

In the case of the Town, assets exceeded liabilities by $108,017,810 at the close of the most recent fiscal
year.



By far the largest portion of the Town's net assets (82.3%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g.,
land, construction in progress, land and building improvements, buildings, machinery, equipment,
infrastructure, and vehicles), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The
Town uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available
for future spending. Although the Town's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it
should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since
the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

A small portion of the Town's net assets, 0.3%, represents resources that are subject to external
restrictions on how they may be used.

The remaining balance, or 17.4%, is unrestricted and may be used to meet the Town’s ongoing
obligations to citizens and creditors.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the Town is able to report positive balances in the three categories of
net assets for the Town as a whole.

Governmental activities

TOWN OF STONINGTON, CONNECTICUT
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

2011 2010
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 6,258,076 $§ 5,922,887
Operating grants and contributions 6,795,674 7,386,033
Capital grants and contributions 1,560,955 1,937,799
General revenues:
Property taxes 48,620,326 47,505,735
Investment income 196,671 222,137
Miscellaneous 18,555 441,549
Total revenues 63,450,257 63,416,140
Expenses and transfers:
General government 5,760,338 8,017,134
Public safety 5,315,579 4,169,223
Highway department 3,643,021 3,083,424
Sanitation and waste removal 5,773,771 5,178,102
Health and welfare 803,803 343,692
Library 269,810 189,979
Recreation 225,268 183,653
Education 36,114,479 36,917,999
Interest on long-term debt 907,607 1,439,712
Transfers 383,354
Total expenses and transfers 59,197,030 59,522,918
Increase in net assets 4,253,227 3,893,222
Net assets - July 1 (as restated) 103,764,583 100,568,640
Net assets - June 30 $ 108,017,810 § 104,461,862

For governmental activities, approximately 76.6% of revenues were derived from property taxes,
followed by grants and contributions 13.2%, charges for services 9.9%, and investment earnings 0.3%.
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Major revenue factors included:

+  Property tax revenues recorded during the fiscal year reflect an increase of 2.3% due mainly to
the increase in the mill rate of 2.2% from 15.10 in 2009-10 to 15.43 in 2010-11.

+  The decrease in operating grants and contributions is attributable to FEMA funding received in
2009-10, the completion in 2009-10 of several grant funded projects including the Town Dock
Ice Machine and South Pier Rehab, as well as decrease in State grants.

+  Capital grants decreased due to the completion of streetscape projects in Mystic.

For governmental activities, approximately 61.0% of the Town's expenditures relates to education,
followed by 9.8% to sanitation and waste removal, 9.7 % to general government, 9.0% to public safety,
6.2% to highway department, 1.5% to interest on long-term debt, 1.4% to health and welfare, 0.6% to
transfers, 0.4% to library, and 0.4% to recreation.

+  General government expenditures decreased by $2.3 million based mainly on the current year
allocation of employee benefits. The following benefits were reallocated to the corresponding
functions: $1.1 million to highway department, $820,217 to public safety, and $221,083 to health
and welfare.

+ Public safety expenditures increased by $1.1 million mainly based on the current year allocation
of benefits.

+  Education expenditures in the general fund decreased by 2.2% from $36.9 million to $36.2
million due to decreases in funding from federal and state grants.

Financial Analysis of the Town's Funds

As noted earlier, the Town uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements.

Governmental funds

In February 2009, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued GASB Statement No.
54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions. This standard will not change
how fund balance is calculated, but establishes 5 categories of fund balance. This statement also clarifies
the definitions of general fund, special revenue fund type, capital projects fund type, debt service fund
type and permanent fund type. The Town’s June 30, 2011, financial statements incorporate the new fund
balance categories. Following are the categories and definitions:

Nonspendable fund balance - cannot be spent because of their form or must be maintained intact.
Restricted fund balance - limitations imposed by external parties, grants, or by legislation.

Committed fund balance - can only be spent for specific purposes as established by the government’s
highest level of decision-making authority or contractual obligations.

Assigned fund balance - amounts that are intended for a specific purpose but do not meet the definition of
restricted or committed (i.e. designated for subsequent year’s budget).

Unassigned fund balance - amounts available for any purpose.



The focus of the Town's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows,
and balances of expendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Town's financing
requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a Town's net
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Town's governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $16,011,835, a decrease of $37,811 in comparison with the prior year. $10,429,020, or
65.1%, of this total amount constitutes unassigned fund balance.

The remainder of fund balance is restricted, committed or assigned to indicate that it is not available for
new spending due to the following:

1. Restricted due to grant restrictions or legal requirements ($350,232).
2. Committed for Capital Projects, Sewer Assessments, Sewer Usage ($2,804,913).
3. Assigned for subsequent year’s budget, encumbrances, or specific purposes ($2,427,670).

The general fund is the operating fund of the Town. At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund
balance of the general fund was $11,559,991, while total fund balance reached $12,724,345. As a
measure of the general fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and
total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 21.1% of total general
fund budgetary expenditures and transfers, while total fund balance represents 23.4% of that same
amount.

During the current fiscal year, the fund balance of the Town's general fund increased by $584,286. Key
factors in this growth are as follows:

+  Charges for services were approximately $500,000 more than budgeted.

+ Actual general fund expenditures were less than budgeted.

The Bonded Capital Projects Fund had a slight decrease of $7,572 in its fund balance.
The Sewer Usage Fund had a slight increase of $32,842 in its fund balance.

The Planning and Developing Grant Fund’s deficit decreased by $501,498 as the Town received grant
reimbursements for grant expenditures that were on a reimbursement basis.

Proprietary fund

The Internal Service Fund is the Town’s only proprietary fund. Unrestricted net assets in the fund at year
end were $3,138,932, an increase of $710,445 from the prior year.



General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The difference between the original budget and the final amended budget was $394,280. The difference
between the original budget and the final budget is due to additional appropriations approved by the
Board of Finance and Town Meeting, as follows:

+ Payment resulting from CT sales tax audit - $262,113

+  Gas generator for Pawcatuck Middle School - $50,000

+ Animal control vehicle - $20,000

+ Natural gas hookup, fire alarm suppression and monitoring - $19,917
+ Highway department dump truck - $19,830

+  IT backup project - $15,110

+ Lead paint compliance - $4,310

+  Probate court - $3,000

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital assets

The Town's investment in capital assets for its governmental activities as of June 30, 2011, amounts to
$120,013,702 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land,
construction in progress, land and building improvements, buildings, machinery and equipment,
infrastructure, and vehicles.

TOWN OF STONINGTON, CONNECTICUT
CAPITAL ASSETS (Net of Depreciation)

2011 2010

Land $ 11,028,391 $ 11,028,391
Construction in progress 3,874,193 3,387,315
Land and building improvements 8,292,073 8,032,958
Buildings 40,063,767 41,343,389
Machinery and equipment 1,854,917 2,070,974
Infrastructure 54,336,453 54,974,431
Vehicles 563,908 696,057

Total $ 120,013,702  $121,533,515
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The capital assets (net of depreciation) decreased in the current year by $1,519,813. The decrease is
related to the current year depreciation exceeding current year additions. In the current year, the Town
had capital asset additions totaling $2,419,579. The additions consisted mainly of the following items:

+  The Mystic Streetscape Phase I - $714,840

+  The Animal Control Facility - $140,294

+  The South Pier Dock being placed in service from CIP - $513,018
+  Multiple vehicle purchases - $162,428

¢ Multiple road paving and sidewalk projects - $556,715

Additional information on the Town's capital assets can be found in Note III C.

Long-term and short-term debt

At the end of the fiscal year, the Town had bonded debt and clean water loans outstanding of
$31,140,963. All debt is backed by the full faith and credit of the Town.

TOWN OF STONINGTON, CONNECTICUT
OUTSTANDING DEBT

2011 2010

General obligation bonds and loans $ 31,140,963  §$ 34,451,947

During the current fiscal year, the Town's total long-term debt decreased by $3,310,984. The key factor
for this decrease was the principal payments on current debt and no issuance of new bonds.

In February 2009, Moody’s upgraded the Town’s credit rating from a “Aa3” to a “Aa2” for general
obligation debt.

State Statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity may issue to 7 times total
tax collections including interest and lien fees and the tax relief for elderly freeze grant. The current debt
limitation for the Town is $366,607,380, which is significantly in excess of the Town's outstanding
general obligation debt.

Additional information on the Town's long-term debt can be found in Note III F.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

¢+ As of November 2011, the unemployment rate for the Town was at 5.8%, which compares

favorably to the state's average unemployment rate of 7.9% and a national unemployment rate of
8.6%.

+ Interest rates continue to drop; therefore, in preparing the 2011-12 budget, an interest rate of
.25% was used to project interest income,

11



Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Town's finances for all those with
an interest in the government's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this
report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Director of Finance,
Maryanna Stevens, CPA, Town of Stonington, 152 Elm Street, Stonington, CT 06378.
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EXHIBIT A

(1 0of 2)
T F N
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2011
GOVERNMENTAL
ACTIVITIES
ASSETS
Current assets:
(2T 1 FE OO U U UUR PP $ 11,580,042
INVESIMENLS. .eeeeiciieciieiiiereretresiree e st e areeseeesesessessrneessssaessnaseesssnnnes 10,206,869
Receivables:
PrOPErty taXES...cccevureriiirreiecirenriesnernciirsreeesreesnesreseessetsieesnnsssaesssaees 660,632
LLOAMS .t ctiveiririirir e rerre e et r e e s e s b ae s e s rene s snesesrreaessrraesentns 224,200
AsSeSSMENS/USEr CHAIZES. .. eiveiveirerireerienirenieereecereeneesnesiessseeseeseesns 839,981
Intergovernmental.......ccoeciecrieernerieneinrenreneesceseee et nesnsereens 958,261
(0111 =3 RO 338,801
ONET..neeicectie et rree e re s e e e e e setesae s s e s te e e st e searea e sesasneas 39,167
TOtAl CUITENT ASSEIS...cvreeerrirrerirrererrrersesersessaesseraressessesnesssnnssnenssnssneneenens 24,847,953
Noncurrent assets:
Receivables (net):
PrOP eIy taXES . . ettt e es 352,904
ASSESSMENtS/USEr CHAIZES. .. cvvereeevirerrieieneeniereseeseeeeesessesssesssnsseenns 227,259
Total receivables (NEt)......vvvvveiriniieininieeieeneeeereneenrenanens 580,163
Other noncurrent assets:
NeEt PENSION ASSEL..u.eiveeerreierriireeirarersrerrrressrseeserssererssssesssesssserssresses 540,906
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation):
- 1T P 11,028,391
ConStIUCHION 1N PrOZGIESS. ¢.cvnenrtrenaineirnrrrenenrarntnernensnseaenans 3,874,193
Land and building improvements.............coevvvveveiiiieneiinnnnanns 8,292,073
BUIlINgS. . vt e e ee e e 40,063,767
Machinery and equipment............cooovviiiiiiiie s 1,854,917
83N T8 (o110 )y <O Ut 54,336,453
A= (1 e] 1 T 563,908
Total capital @SSEtS. . .uiueririiiere ittt er s ereneanes 120,013,702
Total NONCUITENE ASSELS...cccvivverrverrrerrerviereereeserreeeresessereseserees s nss 121,134,771
TOTAL ASSETS. .ot cieritteerreeieninnreeresseesnsssssenrsesssessnsissessrsssssossres 145,982,724
(Continued)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



EXHIBIT A

(2 0f2)
T F STONINGTON NNECTICUT
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2011
GOVERNMENTAL
ACTIVITIES
LIABILITIES
LIABILITIES:
Current liabilities:
ACCOUNES PAYADIE.....cceerrerreeerrerreeieerererecivesieessesessseeeseeses s e ensassassennsnsanne $ 3,115,130
Accrued payroll and related Habilities........ccourvveenerrerieneeneenenieresreneeneeennenes 215,173
Accrued interest Payable..........cvviviiievienerieiiriereeceecensresesrene e e e e e e ens 269,364
UNEArNEd FEVEIIUE. ... .eeiuvreirirrrerrreeeesiressseissreessesessaessssssssnesineseessesssnesssee s en . 268,734
INternal DALANCES. .....oveivrieiirieeeiecreiee et ssreeeseresesaeeesbestsersnessessaaessresssenses 44,350
Bonds and notes payable.........cccoeveieinineciniiennn 3,256,499
ComPENSAtEd ADSEIICES....ccrirereeerireriririrrersresienesarassseresessessesensssersssssesessassesas 430,719
Landfill pOStCIOSUIE COSES....vvrurreerenriirerererentseeseenmseesaeeseesresssseessesessesonsns 28,500
Total CUITENt THADITITIES. ..ccouveiereieerieeceeeieteeerereeesreeesesrresssressnreesreesvasesssessasnnne: 7,628,469
Noncurrent liabilities:
Bonds, notes, and related lHabilities.........occveeeuiiiireeriniicnrerieereeeesceseeveesinennes 27,884,464
Compensated ADSENCES. . ...uverrerririerrreisriesreeraeseesreeseesressseseessesseeresssnsnseseneesne 1,722,878
Landfill poStCIOSUIE COSES.....viiiiririirinierieerierririeesreessrsseeeressessessessnessesseenseses 370,500
Heart and hypertension........uereierirenieeniemnnincneeenseeiseneesneeresseseessssessessesees 152,960
Net OPEB Obligation.......ccceereivenerremiienencrenescnsitcsnissssnesssiassesserenens 205,643
Total NONCUITENt HAbIIITIES......vivvveeriieriereierreirenrecesercseeestresrecsreereseneseserennesnn: 30,336,445
TOTAL LIABILITIES.....ccoiiieinrienricirerecieiesteesteessesessesenseessesssssssessaessasessessases 37,964,914
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt...........cccoovvviiiivininiiinnnin, 88,872,739
Restricted for:
PUBLIC SAfELY .. evitiritir i e 6,248
Highway department..........ovueriiiieiiniiiiiiiiicne i rereeeneeneeens 103,222
Sanitation and Waste TEMOVAl.........oviveiriiiiniiirenrrenene e eieaeeas 88,972
HUMAN SEIVICES. v vuineineinieiennerireeirenerterntennieanssterensnenrnereenenseens 4,525
o LT 3 o) s VPP 147,265
L0410 1y (o1« D 18,794,839
TOT AL NET ASSE TS et uiiititiiiiietieeeteteeeerir i ereneeteretenraenernanenens $ 108,017,810
(Concluded)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TO F STONINGT: NNECTIC

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

EXHIBIT B

NET EXPENSES AND
PROGRAM REVENUES CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
OPERATING CAPITAL
CHARGES FOR GRANTS AND GRANTS AND GOVERNMENTAL
FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS EXPENSES SERVICES CONTRIBUTIONS CONTRIBUTIONS ACTIVITIES
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES:
General government..................oveeeeannne. $ 5,760,338 $ 741,220 $ 613,825 $ $ (4,405,293)
Public safety..........ccoovveniiiniiniiiene, 5,315,579 98,889 79,878 (5,136,812)
Highway department............................. 3,643,021 204,970 268,846 1,560,955 (1,608,250)
Sanitation and waste removal................... 5,773,771 4,384,108 (1,389,663)
Health and welfare............................... 803,803 78,270 52,718 (672,815)
Library......cooooiiiiiii e, 269,810 3,000 (266,810)
Recreation..........ccoovvvviviniiiiieaeiaene, 225,268 103,883 (121,385)
Education............cooeviiiiieiiiiiiieeaan 36,114,479 646,736 5,777,407 (29,690,336)
Interest eXpense. .........cvvuvieiiiiiiiiaannn. 907,607 (907,607)
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES..... $ 58,813,676 $ 6,258,076 3 6,795,674 $ 1,560,955 3 (44,198,971)
GENERAL REVENUES AND TRANSFERS:
PIOPEILY LAXES. ... evireerireseereesrerssarcsreseessssessssstesssens e seesacsaseseseseasaoetuessuessesisetsenceconcasnsssses 3 48,620,326
Investment income 196,671
Miscellaneous......... 18,555
RANSEERS ..ot e (383,354)
TOTAL GENERAL REVENUES AND TRANSFERS......cooiiiiiiiiiiieiice e 48,452,198
CHANGE IN NET ASSE T S ittt it et ettt e ereee e ae s e naaans 4,253,227
NET ASSETS -JULY 1, 2010 (AS RESTATED). ...ttt e eeeae 103,764,583
NET ASSETS - JUNE 30, 201 L., oot $ 108,017,810

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT C

1 of2)
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2011
BONDED SEWER PLANNING AND OTHER TOTAL
CAPITAL USAGE DEVELOPING GOVERNMENTAL GOVERNMENTAL
GENERAL PROJECTS FUND GRANT FUND FUNDS FUNDS
ASSETS
Cash............... $ 8,964,662 $ $ 534,035 $ $ 2,081,345 $ 11,580,042
Investments.... 4,587,097 577,563 1,680,865 6,845,525
Receivables, net:
PrOPETLY tAXES. ..o e 893,686 893,686
LLOBIS ...ttt et et s b b e e rae trneanan 224,200 224,200
Assessments/use charges 1,038,381 28,859 1,067,240
195,912 550,000 166,544 45,805 958,261
334,998 3,803 338,801
Due from other funds..........cccooovriiiiii e 1,830,671 315,950 2,146,621
OFRBE @SSLS.....oooe oot 39,167 39,167
TOTAL ASSETS... .ottt et v ee et $ 16,846,193 $ 550,000 $ 2,153,782 $ 166,544 $ 4,377,024 $ 24,093,543
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable..... ..o $ 2,308,806 $ $ 180,391 3 7,396 $ 185,023 $ 2,681,616
Accrued payroll and related habilities...........ccoccococnriinnen 215,173 215,173
Due to other funds..........cooocoiiei e, 570,170 841,815 309,195 448,304 232,589 2,402,073
Deferred TeVENUE. .. ... o.oetiiie e e 869,327 550,000 841,726 253,059 2,514,112
Uneamed TEVENUE. ..o 158,372 110,362 268,734
Total Liabilities. ... .....oviii i e e 4,121,848 1,391,815 1,331,312 455,700 781,033 8,081,708
Fund Balances:
Restricted. .. ... o e 350,232 350,232
Committed. ...t e 2,804,913 2,804,913
Assigned...... 1,164,354 822,470 440,846 2,427,670
Unassigned 11,559,991 (841,815) (289,156) 10,429,020
Total Fund Balances.................oooiiiiiiiiiiice e 12,724,345 (841,815) 822,470 (289,156) 3,595,991 16,011,835
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES............cc..o... $ 16,846,193 $ 550,000 $ 2,153,782 $ 166,544 $ 4,377,024 $ 24,093,543

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT C
(20f2)
T F NGT ONN ICUT

RECONCILIATION OF FUND BALANCE
TO NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

AMOUNTS REPORTED FOR GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES IN THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS (EXHIBIT A) ARE
DIFFERENT FROM THE GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE SHEET. THE DETAILS OF THIS DIFFERENCE
ARE AS FOLLOWS:

TOTAL FUND BALANCE (EXHIBIT C,PAGE 1).....oiiiiiiiiiiii e $ 16,011,835

CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES ARE NOT FINANCIAL RESOURCES
AND, THEREFORE, ARE NOT REPORTED IN THE FUNDS:

Beginning capital assets and current additions. ... ...ovueeiiiieeiiitnirnir e 123,437,910
DEPIECIAtION EXPEISE. 1. vuevtnerrnetenenrtrenerrnaeerarsenoeneneneereeaeneraaetenensrentencasarsousssteesentnsrersanennaenis (3,405,976)
DiSPOSAl OF CAPItAl BSSEES. 1. tveurriteririitereneteenenraeernen et st eemrr e e ee s eteastntntnestreeiasesernensrersinereaeaeans (18,232)

OTHER LONG-TERM ASSETS ARE NOT AVAILABLE TO PAY FOR CURRENT PERIOD
EXPENDITURES AND, THEREFORE, ARE DEFERRED IN THE FUNDS:

Property tax interest and lien acCrual.........ocvviuiiiiiiinii e 171,850
Property tax and sewer assessment receivable-accrual basis change..............ccocovviiiiiiii 2,514,112
Allowance for doUbtIUL ACCOUNTS. ... .uiuetiriit ittt it et e ettt eet et ie e eeataaaseanaearararareaeaneenaranens (52,000)
F A 0T 1 1o 4 T T £ PN 540,906
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS ARE USED BY MANAGEMENT TO CHARGE THE COST
OF MEDICAL INSURANCE TO INDIVIDUAL DEPARTMENTS:
The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in governmental activities in the
SEATEIMENT OF NMEE ASES. .. eueuitettner et et eenitreteteen it et enetennetatteneeerateeraenasraenenteetataenrnenensansienensnne 3,138,932
SOME LIABILITIES, INCLUDING BONDS PAYABLE, ARE NOT DUE AND PAYABLE IN THE
CURRENT PERIOD AND, THEREFORE, ARE NOT REPORTED IN THE FUNDS:
Bonds and notes Payable. . ...t e et et e n e a e (31,140,963)
COMIPENSAIE ADSEICES. L\t iuitiintet it ettt eet et terneetsneenennenatesereenenentnaraanstneeentensseneerarreremmenenes (2,153,597)
Landfill CLOSUIE. ... ittt et et e et et e e e e et e et s et s et ba s bt s anenebanssnenennatsanetnenennes (399,000)
L3 Gy A T 1 o1 ¢ (1 (o) U (152,960)
Net OPEB OBIIZAtiONS. .. c.ountiiitiiit ettt ettt e et st e et ae it en s eenreraareaeneenenenrseeeenenenensannns (205,643)
PN o (e I 1 (A TN 221 o) (T U (269,364)
NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES . ... .ttt riee sttt ereereenenenensarneeesrenanenas $ 108,017,810
(Concluded)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

17



8!

TOWN OF STONINGTON, CONNECTICUT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

EXHIBIT D

BONDED SEWER PLANNING AND OTHER TOTAL
CAPITAL USAGE DEVELOPING GOVERNMENTAL GOVERNMENTAL
GENERAL PROJECTS FUND GRANT FUND FUNDS FUNDS

REVENUES:

Property taxes......................... $ 48,623,139 $ $ $ $ 48,623,139

Intergovernmental... 4,841,276 1,560,955 1,702,709 8,104,940

Charges for services... ... 2,994,867 2,057,953 994,698 6,047,518

Revenues from use of town money and property e 173,653 483 9,258 183,394

Other 18,555 18,555
TOTAL REVENUES ... ... .ottt ittt et e e e e e e s 56,632,935 - 2,058,436 1,560,955 2,725,220 62,977,546
EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General GOVETIMENL. ...........cocueeerieriieeiieeeieieeieee e eesenessesssecaeeas 7,447,804 138,971 7,586,775

Public safety. 4,240,016 110,940 4,350,956

Highway department.... 2,122,356 265,054 2,387,410

Sanitation and waste removal..... 2,522,793 2,355,594 4,878,387

Human services....... 386,294 386,294

SOCIAL SEIVICES. ......c.ovieieeeeeeeeeeieeeeeet et eneseeees 189,294 189,294

Recreation... 95,634 129,634 225,268

Libraries... 269,810 269,810

Payments to other civic dxvxsmn 161,003 161,003

Education.............c.oeoveen s 33,491,085 1,985,660 35,476,745
DEDE SETVICE. .. .o\ vt iet it e cet e e et e et e e e 4,578,759 4,578,759
Capital QULIAY........cooieereeeeiecc e 7,572 1,059,457 1,074,273 2,141,302
TOTAL EXPENDITURES........... 55,504,848 7,572 2,355,594 1,059,457 3,704,532 62,632,003
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER

EXPENDITURES.. e 1,128,087 (7,572) (297,158) 501,498 (979,312) 345,543
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

TTANSTEIS IML....cvovveer ettt ettt e e e . 599,162 330,000 818,426 1,747,588

TTANSErS OUL......oouveeiiieicie ettt e e e o (1,142,963) (987,979) (2,130,942)
NET OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)......... e vvee e (543,801) - 330,000 - (169,553) (383,354)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES .........ccoo it iee e 584,286 (7,572) 32,842 501,498 (1,148,865) (37,811)
FUND BALANCES - JULY 1, 2010 (AS RESTATED)... ... ...... 12,140,059 (834,243) 789,628 (790,654) 4,744,856 16,049,646
FUND BALANCES - JUNE 30,2011... ... .o cooeee e e e $ 12,724,345 $ (841,815) 822,470 $ (289,156) $ 3,595,991 $ 16,011,835

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

EXHIBIT E

AMOUNTS REPORTED FOR GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES IN THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
(EXHIBIT B) ARE DUE TO:

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (EXHIBIT D).....ooooovvniviiviiiiii

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement of Activities the cost
of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the
amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period:

CapItAl OULLAY . ..... ottt e e e e e
DEPIECIALION EXPEIISE. ..o\ tetnettseteeetnein et ee i et et e et et ettt et et a ettt e et e e et e e e e et e et et e e e e

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets (i.e., sales, trade-ins and donations)
is to increase net assets. In the Statement of Activities, only the loss on the sale of capital assets is reported.
However, in the governmental funds, the proceeds from the sale increase financial resources. Thus, the change

in net assets differs from the change in fund balance by the cost of the capital assets sold......................o

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial resources are not reported
as revenues in the funds and revenues recognized in the Fund Financial Statements are not reported in the
Statement of Activities:

Change in property tax, sewer assessments, and CDBG grants receivable - accrual basis change..............ccocooveivienin
Change in property tax and sewer assessment interest and Hen FEVENUE. ... .......vitviieieiiiiiereieieeeiiire et cenaerenenenne
Change in property tax allowance for doubtful CCOUNTS............oviiiiiiii i

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current financial resources to governmental funds,
while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental
funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect
of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are
deferred and amortized in the Statement of Activities. The details of these differences in the treatment of
long-term debt and related items are as follows:

Principal repayments:

General obligation BONAS ANA NOES. ... ....iuuu ittt ettt e e e e e e e e e et e e st e e e ans

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds:

COMPENSALEA ADSEIICES. .. ...\ .ttt eit ettt et et e ettt et e e e et e et e e e et e e e et e e e et et e et e et e et et et a et e
ACCTUBA INMEETEST PAYADIC. .. ...\ iiit ettt ettt e e e e et e et e e e e e e et
INEE PENSTON BSSEL. ...ttt etertiieet e ettt e et e e ettt e et et e e e e e e e et e e et e e e e e et e e et e e et e e e e et e e e bt e e e e e
Net OPEB OBlIZAtION. ... e.iiit ittt et et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e et e e e e s ee e bt s e e e e ae s aeans
Net amortization of premium and deferred charge onrefunding ...................co o
|3 G R T e 10 O S
Landfill closure and POSICIOSUIE. ...........ueiiirit ittt irees e e et e et ee s et e et e e e e e s e e e e e e et e e e e eeseneeeaes

Internal Service Funds are used by management to charge costs of medical insurance premiums to individual

QEPAMTIMEINLS. ... oottt e e et e e e et e e e e e et et et et e e
The net revenues of the activities of the Internal Service Fund is reported with governmental activities...............................

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES (EXHIBIT B) ....ovcvvievirmriniriecanesasinninesseeeeseeeeesian e eensasnnnnennns

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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$ (37,811)

1,904,395

(3,405,976)
(1,501,581)

(18,232)

472,689
38,745

(52,000)

459,434

3,310,984

632,239
52219
304,287
(29,998)
307,949
(4,208)
67,500

1,329,988

697,168
13,277

$ 4253227



EXHIBIT F

GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
VARIANCE
WITH
ORIGINAL FINAL FINAL
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET
REVENUES:
PrOPEItY LAXES. .. oo te it it et e e e e e e e e e e $ 48473378 $ 48,473,378 $ 48,623,139 $ 149,761
Intergovernmental. .. 2,446,960 2,446,960 2,523,276 76,316
Charges for services.. . .. - 2,492,150 2,492,150 2,994,867 502,717
Revenues from use oftown money and property TP 135,501 135,501 173,653 38,152
TOTAL REVENUES... ... ..ottt oot oo e e i 53,547,989 53,547,989 54,314,935 766,946
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General GOVEIMIMENL... ... ...... .ot it iitiee ettt e et i e vee e e 7,425,864 7,730,314 7,423,957 306,357
Public safety............ 4,349,197 4,349,197 4,238,034 111,163
Highway department............. 2,093,965 2,113,795 2,111,658 2,137
Sanitation and waste removal... 2,719,921 2,719,921 2,522,793 197,128
Human services................... 400,091 400,091 386,294 13,797
Social services... ...... 191,429 191,429 189,294 2,135
Recreation.. 95,634 95,634 95,634 -
Libraries.. - e 269,810 269,810 269,810 -
Paymentstootherc1v1cd1v1510ns 161,003 161,003 161,003 -
EdUCAtION... ..o i e e e e e 31,395,910 31,395,910 31,370,757 25,153
DD SEIVICE. .. ..o iit it ie e e e vt s et et e e e e e e 4,584,759 4,584,759 4,578,759 6,000
TOTAL EXPENDITURES ... ... oot e e e e 53,687,583 54,011,863 53,347,993 663,870
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES....................... (139,594) (463,874) 966,942 1,430,816
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Appropriation of fund balance... 612,557 1,006,837 (1,006,837)
Cancellation of prior year encumbrances e 37,496 37,496
Transfers in.. 600,000 600,000 599,162 (838)
Transfersout (1,072,963) (1,142,963) (1,142,963) -
NET OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)..........coovvveeeieeenn 139,594 463,874 (506,305) (970,179)
EXCESS OF REVENUES AND
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES OVER
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES.................. $ - $ - 460,637 $ 460,637
FUND BALANCE -JULY 1,2010... ... oo e e 11,929,654
FUND BALANCE - JUNE 30,20 1., ... cooi e $ 12,390,291

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT G

T TON E
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2011
GOVERNMENTAL
ACTIVITIES
INTERNAL
SERVICE FUND
ASSETS
Current assets:
TOVESTMEILS. ..ottt et e e e s s eeeeseaeeesateenas $ 3,361,344
Due from other funds........cceevvvveveiiniiinneiiceesvreeeenee 211,102
Total CUITENT ASSELS....uevvvveicreeirrieeecree e e srrenans 3,572,446
LIABILITITY
Current liability:
Accounts payable........ccvcvveiieriiiiierce e 433,514
NET ASSETS
UNrestricted........oviveeiiii e eean $ 3,138,932

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT H
T 1 TICUT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

GOVERNMENTAL
ACTIVITIES
INTERNAL
SERVICE FUND
OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges fOr SETVICES.....iouiuererrirrereeieeteeerereeseeee st eene b ceneebesneeseraeeeene, $ 7,000,530
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Medical ClAIMS...ccoveii ittt sear e ssrnee e e sereesennns 5,401,912
Administration and Other........ccvviiviiiniec e 901,450
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES.......coioiiieiiee et 6,303,362
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)... ..ottt ecreie et eteesvenessesve e svesaa e 697,168
NONOPERATING REVENUES:

INVESTMENT INCOME.......vvvireiieerireiieiirccteee e cenreeeererreessreeeenrneeeneeseessanns 13,277
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS...o oottt ettt s eatssireeseseesssnesaveesaae e 710,445
TOTAL NET ASSETS - JULY 1, 2010 (AS RESTATED).....cc.cocevivvevrennnenn, 2,428,487
TOTAL NET ASSETS - JUNE 30, 201 1.0 e $ 3,138,932

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
22



EXHIBIT I
T F STONINGTON NECT T

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

GOVERNMENTAL
ACTIVITIES
INTERNAL
SERVICE FUND
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received fOr Charges.........ovuvveiieiieiieeetiit e ee e crr e earaeaeeenees $ 7,716,964
Cash paid for claims and other............cooveviiiiiiiin i (5,439,093)
Cash paid for administration...........oeveriitieieiie et e e ee e (901,450)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES............ 1,376,421
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

INVEStMENT INCOMIB. .. t\evit ettt vee et vt e e eeete et ee senteen e aee e e e ann e 13,277
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS......ccooiviiiiiiinnenen, 1,389,698
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - JULY 1, 2010 (AS RESTATED)......... 1,971,646
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - JUNE 30,2011...cccceiviiiiiiniiieinen, $ 3,361,344
RECONCILIATION TO EXHIBIT G - CASH:

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS PER ABOVE.........ccoooiiiiiiieeeens $ 3,361,344
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REPORTED AS INVESTMENTS....... (3,361,344)
CASH - EXHIBIT G.o.uotiniiii et et e et et e et e e e e veveneas $ -
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating inCome (10SS). .. .uvvrvrrrrertiienreeierenertiatrrererenenrinnennennens $ 697,168
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided
by (used in) operating activities:
(Increase) Decrease in:
Due from other funds.............ccoooiiiiiiiii e 716,434
Increase (Decrease) in:
Accounts payable........oveiiiiiiiii e (37,181)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES............ $ 1,376,421

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

EXHIBITJ

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2011
PRIVATE
PENSION RETIREE OPEB PURPOSE
TRUST TRUST TRUST TRUST AGENCY
FUND FUND FUND FUND FUNDS
ASSETS

CASH.oitic et $ 3 11,979 $ 473,354 $ 18,391 $ 348,951
Investments:

Certificate of deposits 139,091

Pooled fixed income... 79,446

Equities 10,494,284 215,612

Corporate and foreign bonds 1,738,820 215,213

U.S. government securities...... 842,930 24,838

U.S. government agency securities. 2,016,652

Equity mutual funds.................... 2,707,280 119,711

Money market mutual funds. 1,248,594 29,759

Fixed income mutual funds.. 830,696 25,966

Municipal bonds............... 153,922 53,286

Asset backed securities 1,141,201

TOtal INVESTMENLS.........vovivivieiieeee e 21,174,379 684,385 - 139,091 79,446
Receivable:

Employer contribution..............o..covveeirieviiiencseee e 374,658 4,251
Due from other funds..............ccooveeiiiviiiii e 10,000 34,350
TOTAL ASSETS ..ot 21,549,037 710,615 473,354 157,482 462,747

LIABILITY

LIABILITY:

AcCOUNts Payable. ..o 462,747
NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR PENSION BENEFITS

AND OTHER PURPOSES.........coooitviiiiiiiiiii e $ 21,549,037 $ 710,615 $ 473,354 $ 157,482 $

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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T F STONINGT TI

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

EXHIBIT K

PRIVATE
PENSION RETIREE OPEB PURPOSE
TRUST TRUST TRUST TRUST
FUND FUND FUND FUND
ADDITIONS:

Contributions:

EIMPLOYET ... vvvierieiireiesiesere st e st ss s e s e sesase st st annesesesereans $ 1422510 $ 61,018 $ 90,000 $ -
Employee.... 220,732 46,018

Total COMIBUTIONS. .....viieeeee ettt s e sr e e s s s neneeeeneaeens 1,643,242 107,036 90,000 -
Investment income (loss):

Net appreciation in fair value of investments 2,822,803 51,006

Interest and divIdEndS..........ccooviveveieiiire e e ees e ereeerseraeeas 537,529 29,999 3,003
Total investment iNCOME (10SS).......coeiiviiiriiiiiiii e 3,360,332 81,005 - 3,003

LeSS INVESIMENT EXPEIISE....euverirereertireerertresiesereseesresseseessesseeneenesseesesseseeens 94,240 7,306

Net investment inCome (L0SS).....vveuvevverinierieirieeerieineeeres et seeeenees 3,266,092 73,699 - 3,003
TOTAL ADDITIONS.......cooiviiicteeeeeitetere ettt vess s aers e nesseresares 4,909,334 180,735 90,000 3,003
DEDUCTIONS:

J5 1S3 -SSR 1,041,033 2,137

ADMINISITATION. ... eeecisr ettt et e eeis e s e e e e esesesneesnessasenesssernseenes 13,146 3,679

ONET .. vectie ettt b bt e e e eat e e e sas s e eseeabeseseebseetsessaesraererenne 7,104
TOTAL DEDUCTIONS... ..ttt ieiie e eeciireecrrearee e sibeeeeesasanneeesssnsseean e 1,054,179 5,816 - 7,104
EXCESS OF ADDITIONS OVER DEDUCTIONS... ... v 3,855,155 174919 90,000 (4,101)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) :

TIANSTETS I, ..o ot ces et et et e eee ee e e e eet et e e e bee vae eee een s aenaee 383,354 -
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS.....ooseieeirenrreseemseeseeresseessesseesssssssessssesessens 3,855,155 174,919 473,354 4,101)
NET ASSETS - JULY 1, 2010 (AS RESTATED)... ... cee oo vev i et 17,693,882 535,696 161,583
NET ASSETS - JUNE 30, 201 1.0 .ce it it et eee e cee vt et e e e e e e $ 21,549,037 $ 710,615 $ 473,354 $ 157,482

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

25



EXHIBIT L
TOWN OF STONINGTON, CONNECTICUT

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

HISTORY AND ORGANIZATION

The Town of Stonington is located in the southeastern corner of Connecticut, bordering Rhode Island to the east,
Long Island Sound to the south and Groton, Ledyard and North Stonington to the west and north. The Town,
which covers 42.7 square miles, was settled in 1649. The Town operates under a Selectmen-Town Meeting form
of government as prescribed by the Connecticut General Statutes and its charter, which was adopted November 7,
1989. The Town provides the following services as authorized by its charter: public safety, public works (streets
and highways), sanitation, culture and recreation, planning, zoning, public health and social services, sewers, and
education encompassing grades pre-K through 12.

L  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of changes
in net assets) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the Town. For the most part, the
effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities are
normally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or
segment, and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in
the fund financial statements.

B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
Jocus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial
statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred,
regardless of the timing related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for
which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenues as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met.
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EXHIBITL

TOWN OF STONINGTON, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

B.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued)

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable
and available. Agency funds do not have a measurement focus but are accounted for using the modified
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the Town
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period.
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt
service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are
recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be
susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Only the portion
of special assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual
as revenue of the current period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only
when cash is received by the Town.

The Town reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the Town’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The Bonded Capital Projects Fund accounts for the financial revenues to be used for major capital
asset construction and/or purchases.

The Sewer Usage Fund accounts for the financial revenues from sewer usage. The types of revenues
recorded in this fund are charges for services and other fees.

The Planning and Developing Grant Fund accounts for the financial revenues from planning and
development grant monies for capital projects in the Town.

Additionally, the Town reports the following fund types:

The Internal Service Fund accounts for risk financing activities for medical insurance benefits as allowed
by GASB Statement No. 10.

The Pension Trust Fund accounts for the activities of the Stonington Retirement System, which
accumulates resources for pension benefit payments to qualified employees.

The Retiree Trust Fund accounts for the activities of the Stonington Retiree Health Care Savings Account
Plan, which accumulates resources for retiree health care benefits to qualified employees.

The OPEB Trust Fund accounts for the activities of the Town’s OPEB Plan, which accumulates
resources for retiree medial insurance benefits.

The Private Purpose Trust Fund accounts for the activities of the Town’s scholarships which
accumulates resources for local student education.

The Agency Funds account for monies held on behalf of students, other community groups and
performance bonds.
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EXHIBIT L

TOWN OF STONINGTON, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

B.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued)

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally are
followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those
standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. The
Town has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. Exceptions are charges between certain Town functions because elimination of
these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions
concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general
revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of
the Town’s internal service funds are charges to customers for services. The Sewer Assessment Fund
also recognizes as operating revenue the portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting
new customers to the system. Operating expenses for internal service funds include the cost of services
and administrative expenses. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as
nonoperating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Town’s policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity

1. Deposits and Investments

Deposits - The Town’s cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, demand deposits, money
market accounts and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the
date of acquisition.

Investments - In general, State of Connecticut Statutes allow the Town to invest in obligations of the
United States of America or United States government sponsored corporations, in shares or other
interests in any custodial arrangement, pool, or no-load, open-end management type investment
company or investment trust (as defined), in obligations of any State or political subdivision rated
within the top two rating categories of any nationally recognized rating service, or in obligations of
the State of Connecticut or political subdivision rated within the top three rating categories of any

nationally recognized rating service. Investment income is recorded in the fund in which it was
earned.
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EXHIBIT L

TOWN OF STONINGTON, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

L

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity (Continued)

1. Deposits and Investments (Continued)

The Town's pension funds are regulated by an approved investment policy, which is reviewed
annually by the pension committee. The Town has agreements with the investment advisors, who
manage the investment portfolios and have full authority for the investment and reinvestment of
pension fund assets.

Investments for the Town are reported at fair value.

2. Receivables and Payables

a.

b.

Interfunds

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding
at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (i.e., the current
portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e., the non-current portion of
interfund loans).

Property Taxes and Other Receivables

In the government-wide financial statements, all trade and property tax receivables are shown
net of an allowance for uncollectibles. Allowance percentages range from 1% to 21% of
outstanding receivable balances at June 30, 2011, and are calculated based upon prior
collections.

In the fund financial statements, all property taxes and sewer usage receivables at June 30,
which have not been collected within sixty days of June 30, have been recorded as deferred
revenue, since they are not considered to be available to finance expenditures of the current
year. Taxes and sewer usage charges collected during the sixty day period have been
recorded as revenue.

Loan receivables consist of Community Development Block Grant loans. The Town
provides the low interest loans for residential rehabilitation as well as loans to local
businesses for facility improvements.

Property taxes are assessed on property as of October 1. Taxes are billed in the following
July and are due in two installments, July 1 and January 1. Personal property and motor
vehicle taxes are billed in July and are due in one installment, July 1. Liens are effective on
the assessment date and are continued by filing before the end of the year following the due
date.

3. Restricted Assets

The restricted assets are for endowment purposes. The trust agreements restrict the expenditure of
investment income only for designated purposes.
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EXHIBIT L

TOWN OF STONINGTON, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

L

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity (Continued)

4.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, and equipment, are reported in the government-wide
financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the Town as assets with an initial, individual cost
of more than $5,000 for equipment, $10,000 for improvements, and $50,000 for infrastructure, and
an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or
estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at
estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend assets’ lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.

Property, plant, and equipment of the Town are depreciated using the straight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Land and building improvements 20-50
Buildings 50
Machinery and equipment 5-15
Infrastructure 20-65
Vehicles 5-10
Compensated Absences

Town employees accumulate vacation and sick leave hours for subsequent use or for payment upon
termination or retirement.

Sick leave and vacation leave expenditures are recognized in the governmental funds in the
current year to the extent they are paid during the year or the vested amount is expected to be
paid with available resources. The vesting method, using historical data, was used to calculate
the liability.

Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are
reported as liabilities in the governmental activities statement of net assets. Bond premiums and
discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the
effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or

discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the
related debt.
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EXHIBIT L

TOWN OF STONINGTON, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

I  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity (Continued)

6.

7.

Long-Term Obligations (Continued)

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts,
as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported
as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing
sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs,
whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service
expenditures.

Fund Equity and Net Assets

In the government-wide financial statements, net assets are classified into the following
categories:

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt

This category presents the net assets that reflect capital assets net of only the debt applicable to
the acquisition or construction of these assets. Debt issued for non-capital purposes, and
unspent bond proceeds, are excluded.

Restricted Net Assets

This category presents the net assets restricted by external parties (creditors, grantors,
contributors or laws and regulations).

Unrestricted Net Assets

This category presents the net assets of the Town which are not restricted.
In the fund financial statements, fund balances are classified into the following categories:
Nonspendable

This category presents amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in nonspendable
form or because they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted

This category presents amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of
enabling legislation or because of constraints that are externally imposed by creditors,
grantors, contributors, or the laws or regulations of other governments.
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EXHIBIT L

TOWN OF STONINGTON, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity (Continued)

7. Fund Equity and Net Assets (Continued)

8.

9.

Committed

This category presents amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a
formal action at the highest level of decision-making authority for the Town. Commitments
may be established, modified, or rescinded only through ordinances or resolutions approved
by Town Meeting.

Assigned

This category presents amounts that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or
committed but that are intended to be used for specific purposes. Intent can be expressed by
the governing body (Board of Finance) or by an official (Finance Director).

Unassigned

This category presents amounts that do not meet the criteria above and are available for any
purpose. This category is only reported in the general fund for positive amounts and in any
other fund that has a fund balance deficit.

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund
balance is available, the Town considers restricted funds to have been spent first. When an
expenditure is incurred for which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are
available, the Town considers amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, then
assigned funds, and finally unassigned funds, as needed, unless Town Meeting or the Board
of Finance has provided otherwise in its commitment or assignment actions.

Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities including disclosures of contingent assets
and liabilities and reported revenues, expenses and expenditures during the fiscal year.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts presented in the prior year data have been reclassified in order to be consistent with
the current year’s presentation.
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EXHIBIT L

TOWN OF STONINGTON, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

II. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The Town adheres to the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data included in the general
fund financial statements. The general fund is the only fund for which a legal budget is adopted.

No later than January 1, each Department, Office, Board or Commission of the Town, supported
wholly or in part by Town funds, or for which a specific Town appropriation is made, except the
Board of Education, shall prepare and submit to the First Selectman a detailed estimate of the
expenditures to be made and the anticipated revenue other than tax revenue to be received during
the ensuing fiscal year. The Board of Education shall submit its budget request by March 1 to the
Board of Finance. The First Selectman, after consultation with the Director of Finance, shall
prescribe the format for budget presentation which shall include, at a minimum, comparative
statistics for the current and preceding fiscal year operations.

No later than the fifteenth day of March, the First Selectman shall present to the Board of Finance
an itemized annual operating budget, including the Board of Education budget.

The Board of Finance shall hold one (1) or more public hearings no later than the first Monday of
May at which time any elector or taxpayer may have an opportunity to be heard regarding
appropriations for the ensuing fiscal year. Following receipt of the estimates from the First
Selectman, the Board of Finance shall cause said estimates to be made available for review in the
office of the Town Clerk. At least five (5) days before the aforementioned public hearing, the
Board of Finance shall cause to be published in a newspaper having a substantial circulation in
the Town, a notice of such public hearing and a summary of said proposed budget estimates
which show the amount to be raised by taxation.

The Board of Finance shall have the authority to increase or decrease the budget submitted by the
First Selectman. Within fifteen (15) days after holding the final such public hearing, the Board of
Finance shall approve an operating budget and file the same with the Town Clerk for submission
to the Annual Town Budget Meeting.
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EXHIBIT L

TOWN OF STONINGTON, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (CONTINUED)

A. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting (Continued)

There shall be a Town Meeting for the consideration of the budget to be held no later than the
third Monday in May and at such place and time as the Board of Selectmen may determine. Said
Meeting may be recessed as necessary. The budget adoption procedure shall be the following:

If the budget has not been submitted or petitioned to a Referendum, the budget as presented
may be adopted by a majority vote of those present and voting thereon.

If the budget is rejected, it shall be returned to the Board of Finance who shall reconsider the
budget and resubmit a budget to the recessed Town Meeting to be held no more than three
(3) weeks after said rejection with at least (5) days published notice thereof.

The same steps and procedures, including published notices of meetings, shall be followed as
outlined above until a budget has been adopted.

Any resubmitted budget may be submitted or petitioned to a Referendum.

In the event a budget has not been approved by June 15, the Board of Selectmen shall be
empowered to set a mill rate in order to facilitate the preparation and mailing of tax bills at a
level that in its best judgment will meet the needs of the Town for the ensuing year. In the
event a budget has been adopted prior to June 15, the Board of Finance shall meet and set the
mill rate at a level sufficient to meet the needs of the Town for the ensuing year.

The Board of Finance, in accordance with the provisions of the Charter and the Connecticut General
Statutes, is authorized to transfer unexpended balances from one appropriation to another.
Management may not authorize any additional appropriations. All additional appropriations up to
$20,000 require Board of Finance approval. Those in excess of $20,000 require full legislative
approval (Town Meeting). The Board of Selectmen and the Board of Finance may approve
additional appropriations cumulating no more than 0.5% of the current year operating budget. There
were additional appropriations of $394,280 made during the year.

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year.
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EXHIBIT L

TOWN OF STONINGTON, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

II. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (CONTINUED)

A.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting (Continued)

e The legal level of control, the level at which expenditures may not exceed appropriations, is at the
department level.

e The Board of Education, which is not a separate legal entity but a function of the Town, is
authorized under State law to make any transfers required within their budget at their discretion.
Any additional appropriations must have Board of Education and Board of Finance approval and, if
over $20,000, Town Meeting approval.

e Encumbrances are recognized as a valid and proper charge against a budget appropriation in the
year in which the purchase order, contract or other commitment is issued and, accordingly,
encumbrances outstanding at year end are reported in budgetary reports (Exhibit F) as expenditures
in the current year. Generally, all unencumbered appropriations lapse at year end, except those for
the Capital Projects Funds. Appropriations for capital projects are continued until completion of
applicable projects, even when projects extend more than one fiscal year.

Budget- GAAP Reconciliation

A reconciliation of revenues, expenditures, and fund balance between the accounting treatment required
by GAAP (Exhibit D), and budgetary requirements (Exhibit F), is as follows:

FUND
REVENUES  EXPENDITURES BALANCE

BALANCE, BUDGETARY BASIS, EXHIBITF -

JUNE 30,2071 correeerereirireensenersseerensenssesesssessssseesensnssansnanes $ 54314935 $ 53,347,993 $12,390,291
Encumbrances outstanding at June 30, 2010

liquidated during the year ended June 30, 2011 .......cccorueveeeee 172,909
Encumbrances outstanding at June 30, 2011,

charged to budgetary expenditures...........covvevererrreivnreeenunens ( 334,054) 334,054
State Teachers’ Retirement on-behalf payment ............c........... 2,318,000 2,318,000
BALANCE, GAAP BASIS, EXHIBIT D - JUNE 30, 2011.... $ 56,632,935 $ 55504,848 $12.,724,345
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EXHIBIT L
TOWN OF STONINGTON, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1. DETAILED NOTES

A. Cash and Investments

1. Deposits - Custodial Credit Risk - Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure,
the Town’s deposits may not be returned to it. The Town does not have a deposit policy for
custodial credit risk. As of June 30, 2011, $11,036,062 of the Town’s bank balance of $14,748,713
was exposed to custodial credit risk as follows:

Uninsured and uncollateralized.........c...ccccoevvvvvevevrercrerrinennnns $ 9,807,456
Uninsured and collateral held by pledging

bank’s trust department not in the Town’s name ................ 1,228.606
Total amount subject to custodial credit risk..........ccccvvrreneen $ 11,036,062

On July 21, 2010, the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act permanently
increased the insurance coverage offered by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) to
$250,000 per depositor. Additionally, amounts held in non-interest bearing transaction accounts
are fully guaranteed by the FDIC from December 31, 2010 through December 31, 2012. The
Town had amounts in excess of $250,000 in a single bank during the year. Amounts over
$250,000 are not insured by the FDIC. These balances fluctuate during the year and can exceed
this $250,000 limit. Management regularly monitors the financial institution, together with its
cash balances, and tries to keep this potential risk to a minimum.

2. Investments - At June 30, 2011, the Town's investments consisted of the following types and
maturities. Specific identification was used to determine maturities;

INVESTMENT MATURITIES
IN YEARS
TYPE OF FAIR LESS THAN 1-5 5-10 OVER
INVESTMENT VALUE N/A ONE YEAR YEARS YEARS 10 YEARS
Fixed income mutual funds..........coeov..... $ 856,662 § $ 856,662 $ $ $
Equity mutual funds........ccoceerivrenenvenenen. 2,826,991 2,826,991
Money market mutual funds...........c....... 1,278,353 1,278,353
Money markets/CDSs .......oevvvveerevenerenenne 2,223,260 139,091 2,084,169
Pooled fixed income ......coovviereeererininenns 8,202,146 8,202,146
U.S. Government securities ...........oouun.n.. 867,768 342,446 90,952 434,370
U.S. Government agency securities......... 2,016,652 9,638 116,098 1,890,916
EqUIties....cooeeviniieeenreceneeeieniseeresseenenens 10,709,896 10,709,896
Foreign bonds ......ccovvvreererienncieiennen 325,158 96,434 184,736 43,988
Corporate bonds.........cevverererieivernerreneennes 1,628,875 56,978 726,318 628,545 217,034
Municipal bonds .........ccccvueverenreirieenee. 207,208 15,271 44,997 146,940
Asset backed securities ..........c..ovvivevvennne 1,141,201 62,398 318.767 760,036

$32284,170 _ $13,599.285 $ 10,533,230 § 3,593,043 $1,065,328 $3.493.284
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IIl. DETAILED NOTES (CONTINUED)

A. Cash and Investments (Continued)

Of the $8,202,146 of pooled fixed income, $1,115 was invested in Short Term Investment Fund
(STIF). STIF is an investment pool managed by the State of Connecticut Office of the State
Treasurer. Investments must be made in instruments authorized by the Connecticut General Statutes
3-27¢c — 37-27e. Investment guidelines are adopted by the State Treasurer. The fair value of the
position in the pool is the same as the value of the pool shares. The balance of the pooled fixed
income investments were invested in a 2a-7 like pool. The fair value of the position in the pool is
the same as the value of the pool shares.

Interest rate risk - The Town does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest
rates.

Credit risk - The Town has no investment policy that would limit its investment choices due to
credit risk other than State Statutes governing investments in obligations of any State of political

subdivision or in obligations of the State of Connecticut of political subdivision.

The Town’s investments subject to credit risk had average ratings by Standard & Poor’s as follows:

us Money Fixed

Pooled Us Gov't Market  Income Asset

Average Fixed Corporate  Municipal Gov'’t Agency Mutual Mutual Foreign Backed
Ratings Income Bonds Bonds __ Securities _Securities Funds Funds Bonds Securities
AAA $8,202,146 $ 28991 $ 52,659 $739,790 $ 2,016,652 $ $ $ $ 491,241
AA 126,436 71,867 96,792
A 673,672 56,266 127,978 130,258 234,977
BBB 751,449 194,900 44,997
BB 21,190 7,026
Unrated 27,137 26.416 1,278,353 856,662 266.168
Total $8202,146 $ 1628875 $ 207,208 $ 867,768 $ 2,016,652 § 1278353 § 856,662 $ 325,158 $1,141,201

Custodial credit risk — The Town does not have a formal policy with respect to custodial credit risk.
Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the Town will not
be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of an
outside party.

Certain investments are covered by the Securities Investor Protection Corporation (SPIC) up to
$500,000, including $100,000 of cash from sale or for purchase of investments, but not cash held

solely for the purpose of earning interest. SIPC protects securities such as notes, stocks, debentures,
certificates of deposit and money funds.
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1Il. DETAILED NOTES (CONTINUED)

A. Cash and Investments (Continued)

The following Town investments are held by the counterparty’s trust department or agent but not in
the Town’s name and, therefore, are subject to custodial credit risk.

AMOUNT

LESS SUBJECT TO

INSURED CUSTODIAL

TOTAL AMOUNTS CREDIT RISK
U.S. Government securities $ 867,768 $ $ 867,768
U.S. Government agency securities 2,016,652 2,016,652
Equities 10,709,896 800,000 9,909,896
Foreign bonds 325,158 325,158
Asset backed securities 1,141,201 1,141,201
Municipal bonds 207,208 207,208
Corporate bonds 1,628.875 200,000 1.428.875
$16,896,758 h 1,000,000 $ 15,896,758

Subsequent to year end, the financial markets have experienced significant levels of volatility that
caused a decline in the value of the investments held at year end. While such declines may be
temporary, investment values are subject to market fluctuations, and the timing of any such
recovery is unknown at the present time.

B. Receivables

Receivable balances have been disaggregated by type and presented separately in the financial
statements. Only receivables for the Town’s government-wide financial statements with allowances
for uncollectible accounts as of June 30, 2011, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible

accounts, are presented below.

PROPERTY TAXES
INTEREST
TAXES & LIEN FEES TOTAL
Current Portion $ 554,085 $ 106,547 $ 660,632
Long-term Portion § 339,601 $ 65,303 $ 404,904
Less Allowance for Uncollectibles ( 36.000) ( 16,000) ( 52.000)
Net Long-term Portion $ 303,601 $ 49,303 § 352904
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IIl. DETAILED NOTES (CONTINUED)

B.

Receivables (Continued)

Receivables as of year end for the Town’s government-wide financial statements by type, including the
applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

SEWER USE
INTEREST & SEWER
USE LIEN FEES TOTAL  ASSESSMENT TOTAL
Current Portion $ 807,396 $ 3,726 $ 811,122 $ 28859 $ 839,981
Long-term Portion $ 244,533 $§ 3726 $§ 248259 § 248,259
Less Allowance for Uncollectibles (__21.,000) (__21,000) (_21,000)
Net Long-term Portion $ 223533 3 3726 § 227259 § - § 227259

Governmental funds report unearned revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not
considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds also defer
revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned. At the end
of the current fiscal year, the various components of deferred revenue and unearned revenue reported in
the governmental funds were as follows:

UNAVAILABLE UNEARNED TOTAL
Delinquent property taxes receivable $ 673,415 $ § 673,415
Sewer assessments and charges receivable 870,585 870,585
Reimbursement grants 745,912 745,912
Loans receivable 224,200 224,200
Unearned property tax payments
paid in advance 158,372 158,372
Grant draw downs prior to meeting all
eligibility requirements 110,362 110,362
TOTALS $ 2,514,112 $ 268,734 $ 2782846
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C. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2011 was as follows:

Balance Balance
July 1, 2010 Increases Decreases June 30, 2011

Governmental activities:
Capital Assets, not being Depreciated:

Land.......coooviiiiii $ 11,028,391 § $ $ 11,028,391

Construction in Progress.......oe.eeerveereaerrenenranneenens 3,387,315 1,002,062 515,184 3,874,193
Total Capital Assets, not being Depreciated.................. 14,415,706 1,002,062 515,184 14,902,584
Capital Assets, being Depreciated:

Land and building improvements............................ 10,815,284 543,893 11,359,177

Buildings.......ocoooviviiiiii 66,497,368 66,497,368

Machinery and equipment...............ccovvviievnenneninnns 5,782,458 34,839 5,817,297

Infrastructure. ..........o.ooevviiiiii e 79,719,978 676,357 80,396,335

Vehicles...o.ovuniiiiii 3,221,983 162,428 138,974 3,245,437
Total Capital Assets, being Depreciated....................... 166,037,071 1,417,517 138,974 167,315,614
Total Capital ASSELS.......c..vviiireiariiieieiieiieriieeieins, 180,452,777 2,419,579 654,158 182,218,198
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:

Land and building improvements............................ 2,782,326 284,778 3,067,104

BUildings. ... .ccoooiviiiiiiiie s 25,153,979 1,279,622 26,433,601

Machinery and equipment................coeveivinenennnn. 3,711,484 250,896 3,962,380

INFrastruCtUre. .....vuiv et e 24,745,547 1,314,335 26,059,882

VehiCles. .. ..ovviiii e 2,525,926 276,345 120,742 2,681,529
Total Accumulated Depreciation...................cceevneen. 58,919,262 3,405,976 120,742 62,204,496
Total Capital Assets, being Depreciated, net.................. 107,117,809 (1,988,459) 18,232 105,111,118
Governmental Activities Capital Assets, net................. $ 121,533,515 $ (986,397) $ 533,416 $§ 120,013,702
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IIl. DETAILED NOTES (CONTINUED)

C. Capital Assets (Continued)

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the Town as follows:

GENEral GOVEITMENL........ccvvievrerererresrinseesiisnsserstssssstessresssesessesesesessanseesessssssesesensnesenese $ 1,162,222
PUDHC ALY ...cvvieeeeeeieieieettete ettt bt ek as s s naeb et saenesbeatassaos 121,966
Highway department...........ccovvvvveerinireinirnesienrmresrssessrsiese e sesssesesesessssessesessesensssssesnes 182,033
Sanitation and Waste reMOVAL ........covvevevererieriiirirece e sre s sensenessenne 657,721
Health and WEILAre ...........ccovevieieeiieieteereeecn ettt ratees b bessenaerens 7,132
EQUCALION ..ottt ettt et e bt ssa e s et e te s be st essesnssanassensasserserees 1.274.902
Total Depreciation EXPENSE ........ccvvvererririeisreeniriseieireesessssesessnsessesssesessssssesessssessssesessenensens $ 3405976
D. Interfund Accounts
1. Interfund Payables and Receivables
A summary of interfund balances as of June 30, 2011 is as follows:
MAJOR FUNDS CORRESPONDING
FUND DUE FROM DUETO
GENERAL FUND:
Shellfish Fund........ccooovveveeeernininininesreeeeseannns N/A $ 4,066
Town Aid Road Fund.... N/A 103,347
Dog License Fund......cococovviecrrerrninnns N/A 12,231
Youth Service Activity Fund N/A 8,649
Community Development Block Grant Fund....... N/A 994
Recreation Commission Fund ..........cccccevvirievnnne N/A 16,262
Sewer Development and Maintenance Fund........ N/A 98,513
Prepaid Education Grants .............eoveeveurevcerercuenne N/A 102,552
Human Services Grants ............. N/A 29,069
Miscellaneous ........ccoevevevvereerenne N/A 98,834 67,593
Capital Nonrecurring ................. N/A 3,965
Bonded Capital Projects............ N/A 841,815
Sewer Usage Fund ........c.ccoceeerrcceennnnee N/A 309,195
Planning and Developing Grant Fund... N/A 448,304
Internal Service Fund..........cccovveeviveennns N/A 211,102
Retiree Trust Fund........ccooevevnvnenee N/A 10,000
Stonington Harbor management .........c.ocovvvevvnnes N/A 23,722
Mystic Harbor management ........co.ooevvevvivieenenene N/A 10,628
TOTAL GENERAL FUND.......c.cceovrerrrerrnrrnsaennnns N/A 1,830,671 570,170
BONDED CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND................ General Fund 841.815
SEWER USAGE FUND.......cccooervrminnrersieniseeesenn General Fund 309.195
PLANNING AND DEVELOPING GRANT FUND General Fund 448,304
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D. Interfund Accounts (Continued)

1. Interfund Payables and Receivables (Continued)

CORRESPONDING
FUND DUE FROM DUE TO
NONMAJOR FUNDS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS:
Shellfish FUnd.....coovviivenicicrcrceeeetsnreresenens General Fund $ $ 4,066
Town Aid Road Fund............ General Fund 103,347
Dog License Fund...................... General Fund 12,231
Youth Service Activity Fund General Fund 8,649
Youth Service Activity Fund Recreation Fund 1,232
Community Development Block Grant General Fund 994
Recreation Commission Fund ...........ccoeeeevnveerennes General Fund 16,262
Recreation Commission Fund .........ccceveeverenenee Youth Service 1,232
Sewer Development and Maintenance Fund........ General Fund 98,513
Prepaid Education Grants...............ecvreveeeevereeeenene General Fund 102,552
Human Services Grant General Fund 29,069
MiSCEllan@OoUS ......cverereecrrerrvnnrererecirinnreearerrenerenenes General Fund 67.593 98.834
TOTAL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS.........ccccev... 311,985 232,589
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS:
Capital NONTECUITING ......eucvrrerecrcernrenisnirensiinns General Fund 3,965
TOTAL NONMAJOR FUNDS........cooveverieririirainnne 315,950 232,589
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND.......ccooconviiveameeerrrnenens General Fund 211,102
FIDUCIARY FUNDS:
Retiree Trust Fund.......cceovvneevvnenncsennereerenenns General Fund 10,000
Stonington Harbor management.........c.ccococereeee. General Fund 23,722
Mystic Harbor management ............ccoceurercrercrncns General Fund 10,628
TOTAL FIDUCIARY FUNDS......cccccvvurrerirnnne 44,350
GRAND TOTAL .....coovreiieereerniaeieessnssssssersssesesenes § 2402073 $ 2402073

All interfund balances resulted from the time lag between the date payments occurred between
funds for various activities.
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III. DETAILED NOTES (CONTINUED)

D. Interfund Accounts (Continued)

2. Interfund Transfers

A summary of interfund transfers as of June 30, 2011, is as follows:

MAJOR FUNDS CORRESPONDING  TRANSFERS TRANSFERS
FUND IN ouT
GENERAL FUND:
Sewer Assessment Fund ............ocoveevveviverivecrnnnnnns N/A $ 100,000 $
Dog License Fund N/A 3,500
Recreation Commission Fund .........ccoevvveviivienns N/A 1,000
MiSCEHANEOUS .......eceeverrerricrereie e nenes N/A 78,928
Debt Service................ N/A 499,162
Capital Nonrecurring .. N/A 729,535
Sewer Usage Fund....... N/A 330,000
TOTAL GENERAL FUND......ccccovoevereirerieerecnieenne 599,162 1,142,963
SEWER USAGE FUND.......cccoovvmimmimmninininceens General Fund 330,000
NONMAJOR FUNDS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS:
Sewer Assessment Fund............. General Fund 100,000
Dog License Fund.......cccoovvuueee. weseeenee General Fund 3,500
Youth Service Activity Fund..... United Way 3,081
Youth Service Activity Fund..... - Ston Soc Services 2,382
Recreation Commission Fund ...........c.o....... General Fund 1,000
United Way Eviction Prevention Fund......... ... Youth Services 3,081
Stonington Social Services Fuel Bank ................ Youth Services 2,382
MiSCEllANEOUS ......covvevretretceererer et rereneenes General Fund 78,928
MiSCEllaneous .......cvvevevveveeeeeerircreemereeeeeeeeeeennes OPEB Trust 383,354
TOTAL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS................... 88.891 488.817
DEBT SERVICE ......ccccoovvriieneninecsnessresensneeneenns General Fund 499,162
CAPITAL NONRECURRING.........ccooervirimrierrriririranns General Fund 729,535
TOTAL NONMAJOR FUNDS.......coevvverrrrneerrinnins 818.426 987.979
FIDUCIARY FUNDS:
OPEB Trust Fund.......ccovvvueerireeveinenrernivceessenens Miscellaneous 383,354
GRAND TOTAL ..ot reseees $ 2130942 $ 2130942

Transfers are used to account for the financing by the general fund of various program and activities
in other funds.

E. Operating Leases

The Town leases a Ford Ranger truck and 2 Ford Fusion cars. The present lease term of each lease is 4
years, expiring March 21, 2014, with the right to return the vehicles and terminate the lease after 3 years.
Lease payments for the current year were $3,132. Future lease payments for fiscal years 2012 and 2013
will be $12,528 and $9,396 for fiscal year 2014.
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F. Changes in Long-Term Obligations

1. Summary of Changes

ORIGINAL DATEOF DATEOF INTEREST BALANCE BALANCE  CURRENT
DESCRIPTION AMOUNT  ISSUE __ MATURITY RATE JULY 1,2010 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS JUNE 30,2011 PORTION
GENEREAL PURPOSE:
Improvement Bond........ 425,000 07/01/07  09/01/26  4.125%-5.5% $ 460,000 § $ 115,000 $ 345,000 § 115,000
Refunding Bond............ 4,525,000 02/15/09  05/15/20 2.0%-5.0% 4,237,400 562,700 3,674,700 441,400
TOTAL GENERAL PURPOSE... ...ttt 4,697,400 - 677,700 4,019,700 556,400
SCHOOL:
Improvement Bond........ 5,000,000 10/15/03 10/15/23 2.5%-4.5% 3,625,000 275,000 3,350,000 275,000
Improvement Bond........ 10,000,000 10/01/04 10/01/24  3.0%-4.25% 8,400,000 400,000 8,000,000 600,000
Improvement Bond........ 10,000,000 10/01/05 10/01725  3.25%-5.0% 8,000,000 500,000 7,500,000 500,000
Improvement Bond........ 3,275,000 07/01/07  09/01/26  4.125%-5.5% 2,925,000 175,000 2,750,000 175,000
Refunding Bond............ 3,000,000 02/15/09  05/15/20 2.0%-5.0% 2,712,600 337,300 2,375,300 328,600
TOTAL SCHOOL. .. ...ootiiiiii i e 25,662,600 - 1,687,300 23,975,300 1,878,600
SEWER:
Improvement Bond........ $9,810,000 02/15/92  02/15/12 5.0%-7.0% 990,000 495,000 495,000 495,000
Improvement Bond........ 2,100,000 10/01/04 10/01/24  3.0%-4.25% 1,650,000 110,000 1,540,000 110,000
Improvement Bond........ 700,000 07/01/07  09/01/26  4.125%-5.5% 280,000 70,000 210,000 70,000
TOTAL SEWER .......ooiiiiiiii e e 2,920,000 - 675,000 2,245,000 675,000
CLEAN WATER LOANS:
Clean Water Loan.......... 2,517,660 1991 2010 2% 125,882 125,882 -
Clean Water Loan.......... 1,563,519 1998 2017 2% 526,081 75,156 450,925 75,154
Clean Water Loan.......... 1,148,280 06/30/00 2016 2% 519,984 69,946 450,038 71,345
TOTAL CLEAN WATER LOANS ..., 1,171,947 - 270,984 900,963 146,499
TOTAL BOND AND NOTES........ooiiiitiiiiiiiii e 34,451,947 - 3,310,984 31,140,963 3,256,499
PREMIUM. ... e e e 161,288 161,288 -
DEFERRED CHARGE ON REFUNDING........c..oiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e, 146,661 146,661 -
TOTAL BONDS, NOTES & RELATED LIABILITIES............cooooiiiiii e, 34,759,896 - 3,618,933 31,140,963 3,256,499
LANDFILL POSTCLOSURE COSTS........ouiiiitiiiii et e 466,500 67,500 399,000 28,500
COMPENSATED ABSCENCES..........coooiiiiiiiiiiiii e 2,785,836 669,822 1,302,061 2,153,597 430,719
HEART & HYPERTENSION. ........oooiiiiiiiiii 148,752 6,915 2,707 152,960
NET OPEB OBLIGATION ...ttt e 175,645 700,998 671,000 205,643
TOTAL GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS.........c.oooiiiiiiiiiiii e, $ 38,336,629 $ 1377,735 §  5.662201 $ 34,052,163 $ 3,715,718

All long-term liabilities are generally liquidated by the General Fund.
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F. Changes in Long-Term Obligations (Continued)

1. Summary of Changes (Continued)

Summary of Debt Service Requirements to Maturity

The annual requirements to amortize bonds payable and clean water loans at June 30, 2011, are as

follows:
FISCAL BONDS CLEAN WATER
YEAR END

JUNE 30, PRINCIPAL INTEREST TOTAL PRINCIPAL INTEREST TOTAL
2012 $ 3,110,000 $1,124,755 $ 4,234,755 $ 146,499 $ 18,020 $164,519
2013 2,595,000 1,007,386 3,602,386 147,926 15,089 163,015
2014 2,565,000 923,733 3,488,733 149,381 12,130 161,511
2015 2,380,000 839,098 3,219,098 150,866 9,143 160,009
2016 2,335,000 - 762,380 3,097,380 152,380 6,126 158,506
2017 2,335,000 672,658 3,007,658 153,911 3,093 157,004
2018 2,305,000 589,973 2,894,973
2019 2,140,000 497,454 2,637,454
2020 2,135,000 406,386 2,541,386
2021 1,630,000 315,254 1,945,254
2022 1,530,000 250,954 1,780,954
2023 1,530,000 187,605 1,717,605
2024 1,530,000 123,195 1,653,195
2025 1,280,000 63,487 1,343,487
2026 670,000 21,715 691,715
2027 170,000 3,655 173,655

TOTALS $30,240,000 $7,789,688 $38,029,688 $ 900,963 $ 63,601 $964,564
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F.

Changes in Long-Term Obligations (Continued)

2. Statutory Debt Limitations

4.

The Town’s indebtedness does not exceed the legal debt limitations as required by Connecticut
General Statutes as reflected in the following schedule:

Category Debt Limit Net Indebtedness Balance
General purpose $ 117,838,086 $ 7,771,331 $ 110,066,755
Schools 235,676,173 23,975,300 211,700,873
Sewers 196,396,811 20,570,000 175,826,811
Urban renewal 170,210,569 170,210,569
Pension deficit 157,117,449 157,117,449

The total overall statutory debt limit for the Town is equal to seven times annual receipts from
taxation, $366,607,380.

The indebtedness reflected above includes bonds outstanding in addition to the amount of bonds
authorized and unissued.

Prior Years’ Advance Refunding

In the prior years, the Town has defeased a bond issue by creating a separate irrevocable trust fund.
New debt has been issued and the proceeds have been used to purchase U.S. government securities
that were placed in the trust fund. The investments and fixed earnings from the investments are
sufficient to fully service the defeased debt until the debt is called or matures. For financial
reporting purposes, the debt has been considered defeased and, therefore, removed as a liability
from the Town’s financial statements. As of June 30, 2011, the amount of defeased debt
outstanding but removed from the Town’s financial statements amounted to $6,175,000.

Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Costs

The Town closed its landfill in 1995. State and Federal laws and regulations require landfill
closures to meet certain standards. Monitoring costs and estimated repairs and maintenance for the
next 14 years at $28,500 per year are $399,000. These amounts are based on estimates which are
subject to change due to inflation, technology or applicable laws and regulations.
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F. Changes in Long-Term Obligations (Continued)

5. Authorized/Unissued Bonds

At June 30, 2011, the amount of authorized, unissued bonds for improvements to the Town’s waste
water treatment facilities is $18,325,000.

G. Restricted Net Assets

The amount of restricted net assets, which were restricted by enabling legislation, totaled $350,232 at
June 30, 2011.

H. Fund Balance Classifications

As of June 30, 2011, fund balances are composed of the following:

BONDED SEWER PLANNING AND
FUND BALANCE GENERAL CAPITAL USAGE DEVELOPING NONMAIJOR
COMPONENT FUND PROJECTS FUND GRANT FUND FUNDS TOTAL

RESTRICTED:

Public safety $ 3 $ $ $ 6,248 $ 6,248
Highway department 103,222 103,222
Sanitation and waste removal 88,972 88,972
Human services 4,525 4,525
Education 147,265 147,265
TOTAL RESTRICTED - - - - 350,232 350,232
COMMITTED;

General government 183,640 183,640
Sanitation and waste removal 589,485 589,485
Approved CNR Projects 2,031,788 2,031,788
TOTAL COMMITTED - - - - 2,804,913 2,804,913
ASSIGNED:

Subsequent years budget 830,300 830,300
General government 61,819 61,819
Public safety 5,095 4,349 9,444
Highway department 27,503 27,503
Sanitation and waste removal 822,470 822,470
Human services 170,168 170,168
Recreation 123,479 123,479
Education 239,637 142,850 382,487
TOTAL ASSIGNED 1,164,354 - 822,470 - 440,846 2,427,670
UNASSIGNED 11,559,991 (841,815) (289,156) 10,429,020
TOTAL $ 12,724,345 $ (841815 $ 822470 $ (289,156) $ 3,595,991 $ 16,011,835
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IV. OTHER INFORMATION

A.

Risk Management

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to public official liability, police liability, Board of
Education legal liability, theft or impairment of assets, errors and omissions, injury to employees and
natural disasters. The Town established as an internal service fund, the health insurance fund, to account
for and finance the retained risk of loss for Town employees. A third party administers the plan for
which the fund pays a fee. The self-insurance fund provides coverage for all eligible Town employees.
The Town has purchased a stop loss policy for total claims in any one year exceeding an aggregate of
120% of expected claims and for individual claims exceeding $100,000 for hospital and major medical.

Only the Town participates in this health insurance program and payments to the fund are based upon
estimates by number of employees and type of coverage (single or family) and trends in the insurance
claims and estimates for administration. The claims liability reported in the fund is based upon the
provisions of GASB Statements No. 10 and 30, which require that a liability for estimated claims
incurred but not reported (IBNR) be recorded.

The internal service fund liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the
amount of that loss can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have
been incurred but not reported.

Because actual claims liabilities depend on such complex factors as inflation, changes in legal
doctrines, and damage awards, the process used to compute claims liability does not necessarily result
in an exact amount. Claims liabilities are reevaluated periodically to take into consideration recently
settled claims, the frequency of claims, including the effects of specific, incremental claim adjustment
expenditures, salvage and subrogation; allocated claim adjustment expenditures are not included.

CURRENT YEAR
CLAIMS CLAIMS AND CLAIMS
PAYABLE CHANGES IN CLAIMS PAYABLE
JULY | ESTIMATES PAID JUNE 30
2009-2010 $ 482,721 $ 5,043,569 $ 5,055,595 § 470,695
2010-2011 470,695 5,401,912 5,439,093 433,514

The Town is currently a member in Connecticut Interlocal Risk Management Agency (CIRMA), an
unincorporated association of Connecticut local public agencies, which was formed in 1980 by the
Connecticut Conference of Municipalities for the purpose of establishing and administering an interlocal
risk management program pursuant to the provisions of Section 7-47-a et. seq. of the Connecticut
General Statutes.

The Town is a member of CIRMA’s Liability-Automobile-Property Pool, a risk sharing pool. The
Town paid CIRMA for provisions of general liability, automobile liability, employee benefit liability,
law enforcement liability, public officials and property coverage. The premium is subject to these
coverages, and claims and expense payments falling within the deductible amounts are the responsibility
of the Town. CIRMA'’s Liability-Automobile-Property Pool retains $1,000,000 per occurrence for each
line of liability coverage. ‘
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1V. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

A.

Risk Management (Continued)

The Town is also a member of CIRMA’s Workers’ Compensation Pool, a risk sharing pool. The
Workers’ Compensation Pool provides statutory benefits pursuant to the provisions of the Connecticut
Workers’ Compensation Act. The coverage is subject to an insured loss retrospective rating plan, and
losses incurred in the coverage period 2010-2011 will be evaluated at 18, 30, and 42 months after the
effective date of coverage. The premium is subject to payroll audit at the close of the coverage period.
CIRMA’s Workers” Compensation Pool retains $1,000,000 per occurrence.

The Town purchases commercial insurance for all other risks of loss, including blanket and umbrella
policies. Settled claims have not exceeded commercial coverage in any of the past three years, and there
have not been any significant reductions in insurance coverage from amounts held in prior years.

Commitments and Litigation

Amounts received or receivable from Federal and State grantor agencies are subject to audit and
adjustment by grantor agencies. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may
constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be
disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time, although the Town expects such
amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

The Town is a defendant in various lawsuits and the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently
determinable. In the opinion of the Town attorney, the resolution of these matters will not have a
material adverse effect on the financial condition of the Town.

Pension Plans

1. Plan Description

Summary

The Town has two pension plans covering substantially all full time employees and noncertified
Board of Education employees. One plan covers employees of the police department (MERS) and
the other plan covers all other employees. The certified faculty and administrative personnel at the
Board of Education participate in a contributory retirement plan administered by the State Teachers’
Retirement Board. The Town does not contribute to this plan.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Plan Asset Matters

a. Basis of Accounting

The pension trust fund’s financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of
accounting. Contributions are recognized when due, pursuant to formal commitments and
contractual requirements and investment income is recognized when earned and expenses

(benefits, administration and refunds) are recognized when due and payable in accordance
with the terms of the plan.
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V. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

C. Pension Plans (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Plan Asset Matters (Continued)

b. Valuation of Investments

Investments are valued at fair value. Securities traded on a national exchange are valued at the
last reported sales price. There are no investments of 5% or greater in any one organization.

3. Classes of Employees Covered

At July 1, 2010, PERS membership consisted of :

Retirees and beneficiaries receiving benefits 121
Terminated plan members entitled to but not

yet receiving benefits » 40
Active plan members 199
Total Plan Participants 360
Number of participating employers 1

4. Benefit Provisions

a. Benefit Provisions

The Town contributes to the Town of Stonington retirement plan, a single employer Public
Employee Retirement System (PERS). The plan is administered by a Selectmen appointed,
five-member retirement board. The responsibility for the holding and investment of plan assets
lies with the trustee appointed by the Selectmen. The trustees shall be the bank or Trust
company having the power to act as trustee in the State of Connecticut. The current trustee is
Bank of America. The PERS is considered part of the Town’s financial reporting entity and is
included in the Town’s financial reports as a pension trust fund. All full time employees
including the First Selectman, Town Clerk and Tax Collector but excluding police officers,
teachers, and other elected officials are eligible to participate.

Benefits are 50% vested after five years of service with the Town and are fully vested after ten
years of service. Normal retirement is the earlier of the member having reached his 62™
birthday or having completed 35 years of credited service. A member who retires on his normal
retirement date shall receive an annual retirement benefit equal to 1.75% of such member’s final
average compensation multiplied by such member’s years of credited service. The plan also
provides for an actuarially reduced earlier retirement date, death, and disability benefits. These
benefit provisions and all other requirements are established by Town ordinance. The plan does
not issue stand alone financial reports.
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1V. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

C. Pension Plans (Continued)

4. Benefit Provisions (Continued)

b. Funding Policy

The Town contributes such amounts necessary, as determined by an independent actuary, to
provide the retirement benefits under the plan. All active members contribute 3% of annual
compensation. Expenses of administration of the plan, including actuarial and legal fees, are
paid from the trust fund.

5. Funded Status and Funding Progress

The funded status of the plan as of July 1, 2010 was as follows:

(B)
ACTUARIALLY [(A-B)/C]
ACCRUED (A-B) OVER (UNDER)
(A) LIABILITY OVER/ (A/B) FUNDED AAL AS
ACTUARIAL  ACTUARIAL (AAL) (UNDER) FUNDED (©) A PERCENTAGE
VALUATION  VALUEOF PROJECTED FUNDED AAL COVERED  OF COVERED
DATE ASSETS UNIT CREDIT AAL RATIO PAYROLL PAYROLL
July1,2010  $ 19,653,688 $ 25290061  $( 5636373)  71.7% $ 9342487 (60.3%)

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the
probability of events far into the future, and actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual
revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the
future. The required schedule of funding progress (RSI), immediately following the notes to the
financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan
assets is increasing or decreasing over time, relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

6. Actuarial Assumptions

The data presented in the schedules of funding progress and schedules of contributions were
determined as part of the actuarial valuation at the date indicated. Additional information for both
plans as of the latest valuation date is as follows:

Valuation Date July 1, 2010
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal
Amortization Method Level Dollar Amount
Remaining Amortization Period 20 Years — Open
Asset Valuation Method 5 — Year Smoothed Market Value
Actuarial Assumptions:

Investment Rate of Return 7.50%

Projected Salary Increases 4.50%
Includes Inflation at 3.50%
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1V. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

C. Pension Plans (Continued)

7.  Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation (4sset))

The Town's annual pension cost and net pension obligation (asset) to the Town of Stonington’s
Employee Retirement Plan for the current year were:

Annual required contribution $ 1,163,837
Interest on net pension obligation ( 17,746)
Adjustment to annual required contribution 21.589
Annual pension cost 1,167,680
Contributions made 1,471,967
Increase in net pension (asset) (304,287)
Net pension (asset), July 1, 2010 (236,619)
Net pension (asset), June 30, 2011 $ (540,906)
Three Year Trend Information
Net
Fiscal Annual Percentage Pension
Year Pension of APC Obligation/

Ending Cost (APC)  Contributed (Asset)
06/30/09 $§ 870,643 108.5% $ (166,729)
06/30/10 940,582 107.4% (236,619)
06/30/11 1,167,680 126.1% (540,906)

8. Municipal Employees’ Retirement System

a. Plan Description

All Town police officers participate in the Municipal Employees' Retirement System (MERS).
MERS is the administrator of a cost-sharing, multiple employer Public Employee Retirement
System (PERS) established by the State of Connecticut and administered by the State
Retirement Commission to provide pension benefits for the employees of participating
municipalities. MERS is considered to be a part of the State of Connecticut’s financial
reporting entity and is included in the State's financial reports as a pension trust fund. MERS
issues a publicly available financial report, which may be obtained by writing to the State of
Connecticut, Office of the State Comptroller, Municipal Employees’ Retirement Fund, 55 Elm
Street, Hartford, CT 06106.
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C. Pension Plans (Continued)

8. Municipal Employees’ Retirement System (Continued)

b. Plan Provisions

Plan provisions are set by Statute of the State of Connecticut. MERS provides retirement
benefits, as well as death and disability benefits. Annual cost of living increases are applied
to disabled and non-disabled retirement benefits and vary based upon member age and date of
retirement. For members that retired prior to January 1, 2002, increases between 3% and 5%
are paid to those who have reached age 65 and (effective January 1, 2002) increases of 2.5%
are paid to those who have not yet reached age 65. For members that retire after
December 31, 2001, increases between 2.5% and 6.0% are paid, regardless of age. Benefits
vest after 5 years of continuous service or 15 years of active aggregate service. Vested
members who retire after age 55 or after 25 years of service, irrespective of age, are entitled
to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount for each year of
service equal to:

-If not covered by Social Security: 2% of the average of earnings for the three highest
paid years of service.

-If covered by Social Security: 1-1/6% of the average of earnings not in excess of the
taxable wage base for the 10 highest paid years, plus 2% of the average of earnings for
the three highest paid years of service which is in excess of the average of earnings not in
excess of the taxable wage base for the 10 highest paid years.

Funding Policy

Covered employees are required by State Statute to contribute 2.25% of earnings upon which
Social Security tax is paid plus 5.0% of earnings on which no Social Security tax is paid. Each
participating municipality is required to contribute the amounts necessary to finance the
remaining costs of the plan.

The required and actual contributions for the past three years were as follows:

YEAR
ENDING
JUNE 30
2009 $ 322,679
2010 363,715
2011 e 474,968
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1V. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

D. Other Post Employment Benefits Plan

1. Plan Description

The Town administers one single-employer, post retirement healthcare plan for the Town of
Stonington Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB). The plan provides medical and dental
benefits for eligible retirees and their spouses. The plan does not issue stand alone financial
reports.

2. Benefit Provisions

a. Benefit Provisions

The plan provides for medical and dental benefits for all eligible retirees and their spouses.
Benefits and contributions are established by contract and may be amended by union
negotiations.

b. Employer Contributions

The Town’s contributions are actuarially determined on an annual basis using the projected unit
credit method. The Town’s total plan contribution was $671,000.

c. Employee Contributions

There are no employee contributions to the plan.

3. Funded Status and Funding Progress

The funded status of the plan as of July 1, 2009 was as follows:
(B)

ACTUARIALLY [(A-B)/C]
ACCRUED (A-B) OVER (UNDER)
(A) LIABILITY OVER/ (A/B) FUNDED AAL AS
ACTUARIAL ACTUARIAL (AAL) (UNDER)  FUNDED (©) A PERCENTAGE
VALUATION VALUEOF  PROJECTED  FUNDED AAL COVERED  OF COVERED
DATE ASSETS UNIT CREDIT AAL RATIO  PAYROLL  PAYROLL
JULY 1,2009 § - $ 9,625,000  $(9,625,000) 0% N/A N/A

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the
probability of events far into the future, and actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual
revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the
future. The required schedule of funding progress (RSI), immediately following the notes to the
financial statements presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan
assets is increasing or decreasing over time, relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.
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1V. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

D. Other Post Emplovment Benefits Plan (Continued)

4. Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

5.

Projections of benefits are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer
and plan members) and include the types of benefits in force at the valuation date and the pattern of
sharing benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The projection of
benefits for financial reporting purposes does not explicitly incorporate the potential effects of legal
or contractual funding limitations on the pattern of cost sharing between the employer and plan
members in the future. Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective. Consistent with that
perspective, actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce

short-term volatility in actuarially accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets.

The data presented in the schedules of funding progress and schedules of contributions were
determined as part of the actuarial valuation at the date indicated. Additional information for all

plans as of the latest valuation date is as follows:

VALUATION DATE July 1, 2009
ACTUARIAL COST METHOD Projected Unit Credit
AMORTIZATION METHOD Level Percentage
REMAINING AMORTIZATION PERIOD: 30 years closed
ASSET VALUATION METHOD Fair Value
ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS:
Investment rate of return 7.5%
Healthcare inflation rate:
Initial 6.6%
Ultimate 4.4%

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation (NOO)

The changes in the NOO were as follows:

Annual required contribution.............cceeeveeveeeeeeierinnne. $ 698,000
Interest on net OPEB obligation ............ccecovvevieeevinneas 13,173
Adjustment to annual required contribution................. (10,175)
Annual OPEB COSt......ouovviiiiceeieceeeereeeceeeeeeveae e 700,998
Contributions made ..........ocvveereeeereeeenieeeiereeeresenenens 671,000
Change in net OPEB obligation ............c.cceooevvevvevennnn. 29,998
Net OPEB obligation - July 1, 2010 ........c.cccvvererrnnnnen. 175,645
Net OPEB obligation - June 30, 2011........c.ccccvvevnenee. $ 205,643
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D. Other Post Employment Benefits Plan (Continued)

6. Three Year Trend Information

ANNUAL
YEAR OPEB PERCENTAGE NET
ENDING COST OF AOC OPEB
JUNE 30 (AOC) CONTRIBUTED OBLIGATION
2009 $ 658,000 86.32% $ 90,000
2010 688,645 87.56% 175,645

2011 700,998 95.72% 205,643

E. Retiree Health Care Defined Contribution Plan

The Town has a defined contribution healthcare plan covering police officers that was established in
July of 2004. The plan provides for retiree health care benefits through reimbursement of eligible
medical care expenses, including the reimbursement of retiree healthcare premiums upon retirement
from the Town. Participation in the plan is mandatory for all eligible police officers. The employee
contribution is 2% of base pay with an equivalent Town match. Upon normal retirement, the
participant’s account balance shall be a minimum of $20,000. If the account balance is less than
$20,000, the Town shall make contributions necessary to bring the account balance to $20,000.
Total Town and employee contributions for the year ended June 30, 2011 were $61,018 and $46,018
respectively.

F. On-Behalf Payments

The amount recognized in the general fund intergovernmental revenues and education expenditures for
contributions made by the state on-behalf of the Town's teachers to the State Teachers’ Retirement
System was $2,318,000.

G. Restatement

Government-wide financial statements:

Beginning net assets has been restated as follows:

Net assets - June 30, 2010, as previously reported........cecvevvvreeverievnnnnn, $104,461,862
To correct misclassified private purpose trust fund .........ccoocevveeevirnnennen. (161,583)
To correct misclassified retiree trust fund.........o.ccecenvevrivvienvcnniircnnnnn, (535.696)
Net assets - July 1, 2010, as restated .......cocvvvevievveririeiceereesre e $103,764,583
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G. Restatement (Continued)
Fund financial statements:

Beginning fund balances of nonmajor governmental funds have been restated as follows:

Fund balances - June 30, 2010, as previously reported.........ccccceeervenrene $ 4,906,439
To correct misclassified private purpose trust fund ..........cccceeiviviiinnn, (161,583)
Fund balances - July 1, 2010, as restated ......cocvovvvreerrerneneeinenieesieeeas $ 4,744,856

Beginning net assets of the private purpose trust fund has been restated as follows:

Net assets - June 30, 2010, as previously reported.........oceeervececrceveneens $
To correct misclassified private purpose trust fund .........ccoccenervenccne 161,583
Net assets - July 1, 2010, as restated .........ccoccererenvinnnninncniniin, $ 161,583

Beginning net assets of the internal service fund has been restated as follows:

Net assets - June 30, 2010, as previously reported.......ccocvvvrverecreneneens $ 2,964,183
To correct misclassified retiree trust fund........ccevveveeveiineeiecieeciieeceeens (535,696)
Net assets - July 1, 2010, as restated ........occeveverienenvnienirenceeneeneenens $ 2.428.487

Beginning net assets of the retiree trust fund has been restated as follows:

Net assets - June 30, 2010, as previously reported.........ccoccvvverenverennens $
To correct misclassified retiree trust fund........cccccveeeveieeeivee e, 535,696
Net assets - July 1, 2010, as restated ......coccoveveevernreesneninne e $ 535,696
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TOWN OF STONINGTON, CONNECTICUT
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

STONINGTON RETIREMENT SYSTEMS

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

PENSION TRUST
A B (A-B) (A/B) C [(A-B)/C]
ACTUARIALLY
ACTUARIAL ACCRUED OVER OVER/UNDER
VALUATION ACTUARIAL LIABILITY (AAL) (UNDER) FUNDED FUNDED AAL AS
DATE VALUE OF PROJECTED UNIT FUNDED AAL COVERED A PERCENTAGE OF
JULY L, ASSETS CREDIT AAL RATIO PAYROLL COVERED PAYROL
2005 $ 15,944,000 $ 18,202,000 $  (2,258,000) 87.6% $ 7,002,000 (32.25%)
2006 16,308,867 19,604,095 (3,295,228) 83.2% 7,598,714 (43.37%)
2007 17,463,378 20,941,948 (3,478,570) 83.4% 7,899,350 (44.04%)
2008 18,683,172 22,649,059 (3,965,887) 82.5% 8,332,324 (47.60%)
2009 18,563,663 24,180,363 (5,616,700) 76.8% 8,843,202 (63.51%)
2010 19,653,688 25,290,061 (5,636,373) 71.7% 9,342,487 (60.33%)
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN
A B (A-B) (A/B) C [(A-B)/C]
ACTUARIALLY
ACTUARIAL ACCRUED OVER OVER/UNDER
VALUATION ACTUARIAL LIABILITY (AAL) (UNDER) FUNDED FUNDED AAL AS
DATE VALUE OF PROJECTED UNIT FUNDED AAL COVERED A PERCENTAGE OF
JULY 1, ASSETS CREDIT AAL RATIO PAYROLL COVERED PAYROL
2007 $ $ 9,478,000 $ (9,478,000 0.0% N/A N/A
2008 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
2009 9,625,000 (9,625,000) 0.0% N/A N/A

N/A - Not available
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T F ST TON ECTICUT

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
STONINGTON RETIREMENT SYSTEMS

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

PENSION TRUST
YEAR ANNUAL
ENDED REQUIRED ACTUAL PERCENTAGE
JUNE 30, CONTRIBUTIONS CONTRIBUTIONS CONTRIBUTED
2006 $ 453,663 $ 464,400 102.4%
2007 657,952 665,953 101.2%
2008 828,833 890,080 107.4%
2009 869,139 944,785 108.7%
2010 937,874 1,010,472 107.7%
2011 1,163,837 1,471,967 126.5%

OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN

YEAR ANNUAL
ENDED REQUIRED ACTUAL PERCENTAGE
JUNE 30, CONTRIBUTIONS CONTRIBUTIONS CONTRIBUTED
2009 $ 658,000 $ 568,000 86.3%
2010 687,000 603,000 87.8%

2011 698,000 671,000 96.1%
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General
Fund

The general fund is the principal fund of the Town and is used to account for all activities of the Town, except
those required to be accounted for in another fund. The general fund accounts for the normal recurring
activities of the Town (i.e., general government, public safety, highway, sanitation and waste removal, human
services, social services, recreation, education, etc.). These activities are funded principally by property taxes,
user fees and grants from other governmental units.



SCHEDULE 1

(10f2)
TOWN OF STONINGTO} NECTICUT
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
VARIANCE
WITH
ORIGINAL FINAL FINAL
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET
PROPERTY TAXES
CUITENE IEVY ..ottt e e et et e ae e s $ 47,663,378 $ 47,663,378 47,641,734 (21,644)
Prior year taXes............uvvevriereerireveerieinennnans 325,000 325,000 419,412 94,412
Motor vehicle supplement.. 160,000 160,000 194,756 34,756
Interest and lien fees..... 200,000 200,000 289,314 89,314
Telephone aCCess TNE.........ooouunieeee e 125,000 125,000 77,923 (47.077)
TOTAL PROPERTY TAXES.......covviiviiit et eee e e 48,473,378 48,473,378 48,623,139 149,761
LICENSES AND PERMITS
Building permits.. 110,000 110,000 204,970 94,970
Business licenses... . 14,000 14,000 14,925 925
Conveyance taxes. .. 120,000 120,000 250,797 130,797
Town clerk's fees. .. 150,000 150,000 184,830 34,830
Miscellaneous permits 2,000 2,000 2,900 900
Alarm registration... ... 6,500 6,500 6,600 100
Wetlands permits, .. 1,000 1,000 4,150 3,150
P & Z and zoning board fees .................................................. 75,000 75,000 95,505 20,505
TOTAL LICENSES AND PERMITS.......ccoviiiiiiiiiiiiiinneeein s 478,500 478,500 764,677 286,177
FINES AND FORFEITS
Parking fiies. .. ... e e e e 10,000 10,000 6,350 (3,650)
Alarm penalties. .. ....ooiiir i e e 2,200 2,200 1,665 (535)
TOTAL FINES AND FORFEITS.....ciiieeiiiiiiii e e 12,200 12,200 8,015 (4,185)
REVENUES - USE OF TOWN MONEY
Interest income. . 100,001 100,001 118,943 18,942
Rentals............ 23,000 23,000 42,210 19,210
Lease SNEFLA........... 12,500 -
Loan repayment SNEFLA........ 12,500 12,500 -
TOTAL REVENUES - USE OF TOWN MONEY.................... 135,501 135,501 173,653 38,152
INTERGOV REVENUES: STATE GRANTS FOR ED
ECS ARRA.. 294,062 294,062
Education cost shanng g,rant 2,061,204 2,061,204 1,747,912 (313,292)
Transportation............... 52,091 52,091 75,742 23,651
Nonpublic services.... 3,402 3,402 3,056 (346)
Nonpublic health Services.............oovvvviii it 9,352 9,352 9,042 (310)
TOTAL INTERGOV REVENUES: STATE GRANTS FORED.... 2,126,049 2,126,049 2,129,814 3,765
STATE GRANTS FOR REIMB ON REVENUE LOSS
Reimbursement disabled. .. 1,600 1,600 1,591 )
Veterans' exemption..... 16,200 16,200 16,053 (147)
Tax relief forelderly.........................oo L 129,500 129,500 130,834 1,334
PILOT state owned property...................ov... 20,986 20,986 21,107 121
Boattax.............ovveiiennns 68,922 68,922
Mfg. machinery & equipment . 82,726 82,726 80,628 (2,098)
Mashantucket Pequot grant...............ooovviiiiniiiiiniieiiieei e 33,124 33,124 34,001 877
TOTAL STATE GRANTS FOR REIMB ON REVENUE LOSS.... 284,136 284,136 353,136 69,000
STATE GRANTS FOR OTHER PURPOSES
Parking ticket surcharge. 11,000 11,000 12,911 1,911
Y_outh services......... . 19.275 19,275 19,284 9
Civil Preparedness. .. .......co.ooviirisiit ot e 6,500 6,500 8,131 1,631
TOTAL STATE GRANTS FOR OTHER PURPOSES................ 36,775 36,775 40,326 3,551
TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE.................... 2,446,960 2,446,960 2,523,276 76,316
(Continued)
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SCHEDULE 1

(2 of2)
TOWN OF STONINGTON, CONNECTICUT
GENERAL FUND - SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CONCLUDED)
VARIANCE
WITH
ORIGINAL FINAL FINAL
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET
CHARGES FOR SERVICES
Solid waste disposal fees.............coiiviiiiiiirie e e 1,625,000 1,625,000 1,230,310 $ (394,690)
SCRRRA tranSportation..............c.veueevreuierusonverereriserernesnnes 82,000 82,000 93,511 11,511
Landfill recycling......... 25,000 25,000 100,044 75,044
Tipping fees..............ooeene 110,000 110,000 116,767 6,767
Building rental/miscellaneous.................cooo i 800 800 3,235 2,435
Medicaid reimbursement... .............co.ieviiiii e 18,000 18,000 11,802 (6.198)
Board of ed activity fees. 7,500 7,500 9,419 1,919
Tuition other towns....... 23,750 23,750 23,984 234
Miscellaneous revenue 12,000 12,000 22,756 10,756
Accident reports....... 1,400 1,400 1,158 (242)
Data processing revenue. .. 20,000 20,000 15,482 (4,518)
In lieu of taxes housing auth.. 10,000 10,000 14,627 4,627
Mystic upgrade d/s offset.. 18,800 18,800 18,672 (128)
GIS revenues................ 1,000 1,000 1,474 474
Utility billing revenue offset.. 12,000 12,000 12,000 -
Vehicle use outside jobs...... .. 27,000 27,000 80,050 53,050
Admin / miscellaneous fees.............cooovviiviiei i 7,200 7,200 20,482 13,282
TOTAL CHARGES FOR SERVICES.......cc.oooveiiiiie e, 2,001,450 2,001,450 2,222,175 220,725
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Appropriation of fund balance...................c.oo 612,557 1,006,837 (1,006,837)
Cancellation of prior year encumbrances.................c....c.cooeevnnnnn, 37,496 37,496
Transfers in - debt service offset................. 500,000 500,000 499,162 (838)
Transfers in - sewer benefit assessment (comb) 100,000 100,000 100,000 -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES.............ccocevieiininn, 1,212,557 1,606,837 636,658 (970,179)
GRAND TOTAL - REVENUES AND
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES.......c.oooviiiiiienni e 54,760,546 55,154,826 54,951,593 $ (203,233)
(Concluded)
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SCHEDULE 2
(10f12)

GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

VARIANCE
ORIGINAL FINAL WITH FINAL
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

DEPARTMENT OF FIRST SELECTMAN

OFFICE OF SELECTMAN
FIrSt SEIECHMAN. .. ... ou et it e ettt et et et e e e et ee e e e eae s $ 87,604 $ 87,604 $ 87,586 $ 18
Second SEleCtMAN. .. ... ..covvs e s e e e e e e 5,722 5,722 5,694 28
Third SEIECtMAN. .. ...ttt it s et e e e ees e e e et ae e e 5,722 5,722 5,694 28
TOWN AHOTTIEY ... oot iit vt e e ee et teeees et et et s b e eee eeeeee eae s vas eas een 50,000 50,000 50,000 -
Expenses (first Selectman)... ... ... ...ove it it or it e e e e 6,000 6,000 6,000 -
Examination of Indices. .. ..........ciietiit oot e e e 2,500 2,500 2,500 -
Mosquito abatement........................... 30,000 30,000 30,000 -
Legal services & cOUrts....................... 80,000 80,000 62,906 17,094
Tree trimming & lighting................cooiiiinness 5,000 5,000 2,172 2,828
Town wide.............. 20,000 20,000 15,238 4,762
11,700 11,700 3,445 8,255
1,000 1,000 1,000 -
7,000 7,000 6,986 14
3,000 3,000 2,839 161
SOlIA WASTE. ... et it et et et et e e e e e e e e s 5,000 5,000 2,292 2,708

Administrative services.
Tax collector...................
Economic development comm.
Finance....

TOTAL OFFICE OF SELECTMAN........ooi i e 320,248 320,248 284,352 35,896

PROGRAMS AND AGENCIES
Secter.......ovueinnn.

4,536 4,536 4,536 -
. 6,452 6,452 5,983 469
CT conference mumiciPalties. .. ... .. vvvvvereivnirerities ceeves ceneiiesvveeee e annvaes 11,913 11,913 11,913 -
Southeastern CT council 0f OV... .....coviiiiiiiit i i e e e 8,437 8,437 8,437 -
Wood pawcatuck watershed. .. ..........c..vveiries et ot e e e 1 1 1
Mystic river pk public TeStroOmIS... ... .o i ii s ot s e v et ee e e 10,609 10,609 10,609 -
CT council of SMall tOWNS... ... vvicesiis vt vt ces et e e e cee s s e e eve e 1,025 1,025 1,025 -
Westerly pops concert e 2,500 2,500 2,500 -
Affordable housing COmmUtIEe. .. .........ocoiiiiitiiiir it e e 1 1 |
Chamber ACtIVIHIES. .. ... ..o v cviveesvescee ce it e cee et ee e e e aee e e 1,000 1,000 1,000 -

TOTAL PROGRAMS AND AGENCIES. .. .......oooviiiien e 46,474 46,474 46,003 471

WATERFRONT COMMISSION
CleriCal SEIVICES. .. ... ittt it it et et eee vt et e s cae ees bae e e e aae v es e 900 900 825 75
Postage....... 75 75 75 -
25 25 25
75 75 75

Consumable supplies.
MISCEITANEOUS. .. ... et e et e e s

TOTAL WATERFRONT COMMISSION. .. ....cuiit ittt 1,075 1,075 900 175

PAWCATUCK RIVER HARBOR MANAGEMENT
CleriCal SEIVICES. .. .. iii vttt ees ittt it et et et st e e s e s 990 990 360 630
POSEAEE. .. e ettt et et e e e e e e e e et an o 200 200 200
AQVETTISING. .. ..ot e e e e e et et e e e e s 500 500 500
Consumable SUPPEs... ... .ouiiii it e e e 400 400 4 396
Reproduction & Prifting...........ccooveevorverier e e oo iee e ee s e s e e aee 500 500 500
MISCEIIANEOUS .. ... 1ttt vt e et et iis et cn e e e cte et e e e eneeees s e an s 305 305 305

TOTAL PAWCATUCK RIVER HARBOR MANAGEMENT... ............... 2,895 2,895 364 2,531

(Continued)
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TOWN OF STONINGTON, CONNECTICUT

GENERAL FUND - SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CONTINUED)

SCHEDULE 2
2 of 12)

ORIGINAL
BUDGET

FINAL
BUDGET

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL
ACTUAL BUDGET

SHELLFISH COMMISSION
EXPEIISES. .. .vu it it it vt et e v e e e e

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION
POSEAE. .. o e eestit it et e rs et e e e et e e tee aee vaerae een tre e e
AQVETEISIIZ. . ettt vt eee vt s et ree ree et tee ses e sttt ere vee ee s arn aae aeeea et e
Consumable SUPPLES. .. ... ... veeven it it ees it ees et eee s cee et eee it e ee e e
TTAAE SHOWS. .. .0 vt vt trs it ittt ees ces creees vt e crn ces tae e e bee ree searnvaesee see s
TTAVEL .t et ettt et et e e e et e et e e e e

TOTAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION...........ovvviinnn
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT

Emerg. mgt. tactical oper. dir
Clerical salaries

Consumable sSupplies.............coovoiiiiiiiiii i
EQUIPIIENL. .. .0 ot it ces e it et e eeeeeesee o et tee eeeeas s s ves eee e e e e
Dev. of emergency plan..........cc.oooeuu it ieii it it e
MISCRIIANEOUS. .. ... oottt it ees it e it e e vt ettt e e e et e e e e
Furniture & eqUIPIMENt. .. ...... v vviiteiriin it et et ee e s v e
Generator MAINLENANCE. .. ... ....ceuvt et teriitinireeen it ceeiin oot eere ces et oo ae s
Water testing.............
Communications... ...
RO MAINENANCE. .. ... ot iet vt e i vt et e et et e e et e e

TOTAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT..........cocovin v

ELECTIONS

Referenda/election persomnel.............cooviiiiniiiiconie e e e
RegiStrars' SAlAITES. .. ... ... .uviiveeier e it eeeee e et ees it ve e s cee et aee s aee s e
POSEAZE. .. ... ittt it et et e e e e e e e e e e e
AVETTISINEZ. .. .0 et it it tet et s vt et et e e et et e e e
Consumable SUPPHES... ... . veeait i cie it vt eet et vt e e e e e e
TelePhONE. .. ...t it i e e e e e e
Equipment.............
Reproduction & printing.....
Prof assoc. & publications
Voting canvas............

Miscellaneous...
Voting machine....... .
Ballot printing / programmiing... ..........c..evieriiiiiiiieieriieiie i s

TOTAL ELECTIONS .. ..ottt e e e s e e

TOWN CLERK
Salary of town clerk... ...
Clerical SAlATIES. .. ........c.oviiriiniiiiit ittt et et et et et e e
Postage........
Advertising.........
Consumable supplies
Telephone.............

Equipment...............
Prof assoc. & publications................c..ooeeeins
Fumiture & equipment..............c.oooviviienins
Training & dUCAtON. .. ....vevt s i ittt ve vt et et s e e et e
Land records & data proCessing... ... .......coecevve s ioriiers s eeveeieeces e
Vital SEALISHICS... ... ettt e e e e e e

50

50

200
4,500
1,000
500
450

200
4,500
1,000

500

450

200

5,010 (510)
914 86
370 130
450

6,650

6,650

6,294 356

11,048
1,600
250
500

1

100
750

1
400

1
9,000

11,048
1,600
250
500

100
750

1

400

1
9,000

11,048 -

1,600 -
244 6

500 -

94 6
750 -

8,753 247

23,651

23,651

22,989 662

57,000
30,402
5,000
5,000
2,000
3,000
2,000
500
600
1,000
500
2,200
10,000

57,000
30,402
4,677
4,464
2,000
3,000
2,000
500
600
1,000
500
2,870
9,330

55,864 1,136
30,402 -
341 4336
478 3,986
441 1,559
4231 (1,231)
99 1,901
57 443
1,570 (970)
105 895
1,824 (1,324)
2,870 -
8,849 481

119,202

118,343

107,131 11,212

62,100
86,480
2,500
5,500
3,500
500
5,000
220

1

1,000
42,000
450

62,100
86,492
2,500
12,740
3,500
500
5,000
220

1

988
34,917
293

62,100 -
86,492 -
2,500 -
15,071 (2,331
3,363 137
441 59
2,929 2,071
155 65
1
648 340
34917 -
198 95

209,251

209,251

208,814 437
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TOWN OF STONINGTON, CONNECTICUT

GENERAL FUND - SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CONTINUED)

SCHEDULE 2
(3of12)

ORIGINAL
BUDGET

FINAL
BUDGET

ACTUAL

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL
BUDGET

TOWN MEETING & REFERENDA

Town meeting Personnel......... .. ... irviriieiiviriit coniee et e cee e
AVEIHISING. .. ... oo ie it e e et e e e e e e

TOTAL TOWN MEETING & REFERENDA.............cooiiiiiiis

JUDGE OF PROBATE
Postage.............

Consumable SUPPHES... ... ..o iviit it et et e it s ees e e e
Reproduction & PriNting... ... ...ooovervveviiii vt et ee e eee e cee e
TEIEPRONE. .. ...t ettt it et e e e e e e e s

TOTAL JUDGE OF PROBATE. .........ooooiiiiiiii i

PAYMENT/OTHER CIVIL DIVISIONS

Borough of Stonington... .......c..coii it e

INFORMATION SYSTEMS

TT IDANAGET. .. .ot it it it et s e e e e e et et et e e e e

Postage.............

Consumable SUPPHES. .. ... ..ot iie it et e et cee et et e e e e
Reproduction & PrintiNg.............c.vieiiiit it iirint oot et e eee e

Telephone...............

Prof assoc. & PublCALIONS. .. ......ive it iiiitieeiit et e e et ee e

Equipment & licensing... ..
Internet hosting expense.
Miscellaneous... ..........
Training & education....
Telecommunications.....

Technical ASSISTANCE. .. ... ..oy vt vt e iiriee vt v et ae e e s n e e e

TOTAL INFORMATION SYSTEMS..................

TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF FIRST SELECTMAN..........ccccivinnnnn.

DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

ADMINISTRATION

Dir of adminiSIrative SIVS.......ooiitiet oo iie vt vt aes e et et e e ees e

Administrative support staff.
Postage..........
Advertising..........
Consumable supplies.
Reproduction & printing
Telephone. .. ....oooviii e e et e e
Equipment................

Prof assoc. & publications............occivivrr oo e e e e e e e
Seminars & programs (trng/ed)..........covvevii i iieiiiit e e
Database EXPENSES. .. ... ... voiirertee ottt een e e et et ent et e e e ven e e bea

Miscellaneous...................

Memorial ObSEIVANCES. .. .. ..uve et ies et reieiee e et oot e tee e e cee e e
Columbus day ObSEIVANCES. ... .. vve'veiie it et iee e vt

Furniture & equipment. ...

Training & education... ... ....c.vi e ieiee it e

TOTAL ADMINISTRATION..........coveenn.

200
3,000

200
3,536

3,736

$ 200

(200)

3,200

3,736

3,736

600
1,000
900
500

923
4,000
900
500

1,158
4,163
502
500

(235)
(163)
398

3,000

6,323

6,323

161,003

161,003

161,003

82,987
31,500
300
2,000
50
1,500
250
30,040
4,000
50
2,000
53,000
5,000

64,987
31,506
300
2,000
50
1,500
250
63,150
4,000
50
1,994
53,000
5,000

64,965
31,506
83
1,947
34
1,344

61,229
4,225
50
1,495
52,978
4,905

2
217
53
16
156
250
1,921

(225)

499
22
95

212,677

227,787

224,761

3,026

1,109,376

1,127,486

1,072,670

54,816

85,969
197,886
1,000
14,000
1,700
500
150
5,400
4,000
750
6,670
700
7,500
5,000
1,500
2,000

85,969
197,886
1,000
14,000
1,700
500
150
5,400
4,000
750
6,670
700
7,500
5,000
1,500
2,000

80,636
174,415
912
9,794
2,702
481
203
3,230
2,365

3,777
484
7,205
5,000
1,335
185

5,333
23471
88
4,206

(1,002)
19

(53)
2,170
1,635
750
2,893
216
295
165
1,815

334,725

334,725

292,724

42,001
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SCHEDULE 2
@of 12)
TOWN OF STONINGTON, CONNECTICUT
GENERAL FUND - SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CONTINUED)

VARIANCE
ORIGINAL FINAL WITH FINAL
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

HUMAN RESOURCES

Employee training/education... ... .......vveeevee i inieeere oo et eae e aee e $ 8,762 $ 8,762 $ 4,768 $ 3,994
Labor NEGOHAtIONS. .. ... vevuvt et ittt e et et et e bt et e cee e s b een e e 50,000 50,000 27,296 22,704
PenSiON PIANL.. ..ot ii ottt ee e e et e e et e e e e e 618,014 618,014 618,014 -

SOCIAL SECUTTLY ... 1. e vt tee ce e vt et et et e e ees e b ees s aee een e een v 423,833 423,833 398,136 25,697
UNEmMPIOYIMENt... .ottt it e e et cee e et et e crceinvee cee cee bt s s o : 10,000 10,000 32,195 (22,195)
Heart & hypertension... ......... oo iiiiurior it i it et e e e e eee e 33,302 33,302 32,849 453
Employee assiStance Programl... ... ...o.uu.vvt vt veetvve it ieeeeeinieesinnieeserane e 2,200 2,200 1,755 445
EMplOyee SCIEEMING. .. ... vt vttt it et e iae cen vt eerant cee s e s b eee e aee e 700 700 700
Additional MANPOWET. .. ... ivi i ceeit cve et it vee ees et ere vanaineee sneeee e ien e 5,000 9,291 5,691 3,600
Employee travel expense 28,000 28,000 20,278 7,722
Accrued leave payout.. 20,000 20,000 17,750 2,250
Retiree health care. . 53,000 53,000 61,018 (8,018)
Health iNSUrance... ... ... .c..oouut oot cin e i e et e e e 1,522,465 1,522,465 1,522,385 80
LiAfe A0SUIBICE. .. 1. et e et ee oo e e e e e e e e et e e e e 18,000 18,000 17,638 362
Pension plan funding CONtrib... ... .........c.oceoveietioriesesee e e e 300,179 300,179 300,179 -

TOTAL HUMAN RESOURCES..........c.oooiiiiiiii i i 3,093,455 3,097,746 3,059,952 37,794

HEALTH OFFICER, SANITATION & EMS
Health officer salaries . 22,717 22,717 22,716 1
Sanitarian salaries... .. 65,861 65,861 65,362 (€)]
Expenses....... 1,575 1,575 1,385 190
Furniture & equipment.. . 500 500 500
Traiming & dUCAHON. .. ...........c.oviee i seeer e e evees e ee e e 500 500 100 400
Stonington ambulanCe. .. ...... ..o e e 25,000 25,000 25,000 -
Mystic river ambUulance. .. ... ... c..eiviii it et et e e 25,000 25,000 25,000 -
Westerly ambulance... ..o oo voiis oot s e e e e e 25,000 25,000 25,000 -

TOTAL HEALTH OFFICER, SANITATION & EMS............cco oo 166,153 166,153 165,063 1,090

RISK MANAGEMENT
Risk management SHPENd.......c...o.vtvieiue it eeeinnens s eescesrieaes e ves snaee e 7,304 7,304 4,495 2,809
Property & liability insurance.. 520,000 520,000 471,258 48,742
Claims & damages...... ... 10,000 10,000 1,056 8,944
SAfetY PIOGIAINL .. ... et teiiie it it ettt e et e v e et e aas s tee s creee e e e 2,500 2,500 483 2,017

Dog damages............ccoov e

TOTAL RISK MANAGEMENT.........ooooooii 539,805 539,805 477,292 62,513

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
Clerical SAIATIES. .. ... .c.iiiuvs it ve et iee et et e ees e e eeeee e e e e 26,252 26,271 26,270 1

TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES............. 4,160,390 4,164,700 4,021,301 143,399

FINANCE DEPARTMENT

FINANCE OFFICE

Director of fiNANCe. .. ... ... iit ittt et e e e e 97,533 97,533 97,096 437
SENIOr ACCOUMEANT. .. ... .utiet et tee it et tee e es et ees e e et et tee st eee eeantaen e s 73,786 73,786 73,786 -

Clerical SAIAMIES. .. ... ceviriet vt et et e s et cee e eeseee e e e s 134,740 134,740 134,304 436
POSEABE. .. oottt it e e e e e e e e e e 2,600 2,600 2,019 581
Consumable SUPPHES. .. ... ..ovutivtiie it ie et et et e e e e e 2,700 2,700 2,901 (201)
Reproduction & printifig... ... .......cooi ettt et e i e e 700 700 591 109
TeIEPROME. .. ..o it ettt e et e e cee s et cee e e e e re e e ia s 200 200 144 56
Prof assoc. & publiCatioNS. .. ... .......eeuitviiir s ees e vs e e s e ee s e e 800 800 625 175
Payroll SETVICES. .. .o vt iet it eet it e e et et e e et e e 26,000 26,000 27,364 (1,364)
Equipment & software SUPPOTt..........co.veiieiitier it eeeiie ereeeeiee eeevneve s e 16,000 16,000 15,290 710
Training & education. .. ..........oouiiiiii it ie e e e e e aes 600 600 240 360

TOTAL FINANCE OFFICE..........0ouiiiiiiiiiieiiieine e e 355,659 355,659 354,360 1,299

(Continued)
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GENERAL FUND - SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CONTINUED)

SCHEDULE 2
(50f12)

ORIGINAL
BUDGET

FINAL
BUDGET

ACTUAL

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL
BUDGET

ASSESSOR'S OFFICE
Salary of assessor...
Assistant assessor...
Clerical salaries... ..
Postage...........cooeiiiiieiinns
Consumable supplies............ocouviiv it
Reproduction & Printing............oooveeviiiiiunnviiies et et e e e
Telephone. ........oooiiiii e
Equipment............oooniieinnins
Prof assoc. & publications.............coocooviiiiiiiii i
Database EXPENSES. .. ... unvvtireveetee e en et it e neee e e e e e e s e
MISCEIIANEOUS. .. ... eiv et it et et e e e e e s

Furniture & eqUIPIMEnt... ... .. ccovvve it it iet ee et it ee e et s e eee ce s
Training & education... ...,
Special audit pers. Property.............ccooeovvi i ieiiin e ienen

TOTAL ASSESSOR'S OFFICE... ... oo s

BOARD OF ASSESSMENT APPEALS
EXPENSES. .. oot ittt et e e e e

OFFICE OF THE TREASURER
Salary Of trEASUIET. .. ... vt ter it et vee vt es eee e e e e et
EXPONSES. ..ot e e e

TOTAL OFFICE OF THE TREASURER.........ccoovv i

OFFICE OF THE TAX COLLECTOR
Salary of tax collector... ..ot
Clerical salaries..............o.iivi i
POSIAEE. .. .ottt e e
F N T T~ P P PSS
Consumable SUPPHES. .. .. vve vt et vet i e e e e e e e
Reproduction & Printifi... ... ..ovveeriitiee i it et et e cee e cneaan s
Telephone. .. ...t i e e
Equipment................
Prof assoc. & publications
Miscellaneous............
Training & education...
DMV delinquent rePorting... .........ovevvtivnveeoviiieine e vneenineeee i e e

TOTAL OFFICE OF THE TAX COLLECTOR.........ccooooiiiiiiniiiiie

BOARD OF FINANCE
Clerical SALATTES. .. ... eoe vt et ettt e e et e e
AVETISIIIZ. .. oot vvs et ettt e e vt cee e e ee et e e e e ae e e ren e
Professional ServICes. .. ... ..ooiuiriiiiit i ici ittt s e e
Accounting and auditing............vveiis et et e e e e
Special audit........
GASB45............ .
Sales tax state 0f CT ..o iie it it et et e e e e e eee e

TOTAL BOARD OF FINANCE.......c.oocoooiiiiiiniii i

TOTAL FINANCE DEPARTMENT.......oiiiiiivi e e

78,156
57,800
87,620
1,564
1,950
1,700
1,490
425
2,004
13,316
1,401
1
1,656
3,200

78,156
57,800
87,620
1,564
1,950
1,700
1,490
425
2,004
13,316
1,401
1
1,656
3,200

78,156
57,741
81,307
1,564
1,853
1,741
85
400
1,897
13,375
1,323

1,742
2,800

59
6,313

97

(a1
1,405
25
107

(59
78

(86)
400

252,283

252,283

243,984

8,299

2,800

2,800

2,014

786

3,542
100

3,542
100

3,542

100

3,642

3,642

3,542

100

62,100
81,495
13,000
1,500
1,150
6,500
300
4225
150
100
700
3,500

62,100
81,495
13,000
1,500
1,150
6,500
300
4,225
150
100
700
3,500

62,100
76,937
13,025
1,265
796
6,582
332
4,090
125

436
3,365

4,558
@5)
235
354
82)
32)
135
25
100
264
135

174,720

174,720

169,053

5,667

2,000
1,000
2,000
60,000
10,000
90,000

2,000
1,000
2,000
60,000
10,000
90,000
262,113

1,200
1,083

53,500
10,000
90,000
262,113

800

(83)
2,000
6,500

165,000

427,113

417,896

9,217

954,104

1,216,217

1,190,849

25,368
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TOWN OF STONINGTON, CONNECTICUT
GENERAL FUND - SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CONTINUED)
VARIANCE
ORIGINAL FINAL WITH FINAL
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET
DEBT SERVICE
DEBT SERVICE INTEREST
Series 1991 clean water (IdS Pt).......couvvvviirriviririee it i v ee e eieee . 2,518 $ 2,518 $ 2,518 $ -
Series 1992 G.O. sewer (phase v) 62,865 62,865 62,865 -
Series 1998 clean water (mys).. 10,522 10,522 10,522 -
Series 2000 clean water (mys).... 10,399 10,399 10,400 0
Series 2003 G.O. bonds (high sch).. 137,063 137,063 137,063 -
Series 2004 G.O. bonds (high sch).. . 378,380 378,380 378,380 -
Series 2005 G.O. bonds (hi sCh ren...... ...t e e e 305,625 305,625 305,625 -
Series 2007 G.O. bonds. ... e 149,178 149,178 149,178 -
Series 2009 refunding..........co o e 211,225 211,225 211,225 -
TOTAL DEBT SERVICE INTEREST .......ooiiv i e 1,267,775 1,267,775 1,267,776 (1)
DEBT SERVICE PRINCIPAL
Series 1991 clean water (Ids pt)... 125,883 125,883 125,883 -
Series 1992 G.O. sewer (phase v) 495,000 495,000 495,000 -
Series 1998 clean water (mys).... 75,155 75,155 75,154 1
Series 2000 clean water (mys).... 69,946 69,946 69,946 -
Series 2003 G.O. bonds (high sch)..............c...o.oes 275,000 275,000 275,000 -
Series 2004 G.O. bonds (high sch)..............cocon e, 510,000 510,000 510,000 -
Series 2005 G.O. bonds (hi schren)..........oiivet vt e 500,000 500,000 500,000 -
Series 2007 G.O. bonds.......c..ooiviiiiiit i 360,000 360,000 360,000 -
Series 2009 TefundiNg... ...... oot oot ier ot et e e e e 900,000 900,000 900,000 -
BONAINE COSIS... .ot vttve ittt it et ettt cee et et e ee et s eee e ae anae e e 6,000 6,000 6,000
TOTAL DEBT SERVICE PRINCIPAL.......c.ccotiiiitiit it e 3,316,984 3,316,984 3,310,983 6,001
TOTAL DEBT SERVICE.........ccoiviiiiivin e 4,584,759 4,584,759 4,578,759 6,000
DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING
PLANNING OFFICE
Director of PIANNMINE. .. ... ...ovt it it ittt et e e et e 84,681 82,693 717,574 5,119
PIanner......o vt e e e e 69,190 69,190 69,190 -
Zoning enforcement OffICET. .. ... ... ...coieii it vt ee e e e e 61,580 61,580 61,579 1
Inland wetland enf. officer................iiiiiii e 25,647 25,647 24,732 915
Clerical SAIAMIES. .. ..o vvies it ves v i iis et et et e s et e e e e e 85,340 87,328 87,328 -
Clerical meetings... 5,500 5,500 4,100 1,400
Consumable supplies.... 2,500 2,500 1,395 1,105
Reproduction & printing, 10,000 10,000 4,047 5,953
Telephone.............. 500 500 132 368
Equipment................ . 3,000 3,000 2,635 365
Prof assoc. & publications... ........viieiitiinii it e 1,200 1,200 1,091 109
FEMA CRS community outreach. .. ..........cc.oouueiiiinnaniie i ies e 3,000 3,000 2,045 955
Furniture & eqUIPMEnt... ... ......ocouiiuitrs i et et et eee et e e e e 1,500 1,500 1,500
Training & eduCatION. .. ... ..oc v vt it tee ettt et et et e e e e 3,000 3,000 1,354 1,646
TOTAL PLANNING OFFICE........c oottt iet it et et et eee e an e 356,638 356,638 337,202 19,436
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION
PoStage........c.ovvieeerinnnn 7,500 7,500 2,000 5,500
AdVertising & COUIt SEENO... ... ... .couiriveiveiiroiiiirie vt anrveriae e sineee e eeenens 21,000 21,000 19,534 1,466
TOTAL PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION. .. ... oot it v, 28,500 28,500 21,534 6,966
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS
POSTARE. .. ..ot e e 1,450 1,450 200 1,250
AAVEItiSING. .. oo ve e o e e s 11,000 11,000 9,131 1,869
TOTAL ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS..........0oooiiiiiiiiieiiieniee i, 12,450 12,450 9,331 3,119
(Continued)
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ORIGINAL
BUDGET

FINAL
BUDGET

ACTUAL

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL
BUDGET

CONSERVATION COMMISSION
Reproduction & printing... ... ......oovvriveein et it inenn ceeiiai et s
Prof assoc. & publications. .. .......cc.vties it ies it eer et e et e e
Barn island fleld trPS. .. ... .veveiiitvit it e e e e e

TOTAL CONSERVATION COMMISSION..........coooiviiiin s
INLAND WETLANDS COMMISSION

POSEAZE. .. ¢ee ettt it it aet i st et et et e s e e e e s s e e
Advertising.............

TOTAL INLAND WETLANDS COMMISSION.........ooocoiin i
TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING.........ccocoiiiiiii
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT
Public works director.
Labor salaries..........
Highway supervisor
Clerical salaries. ...
Postage..........ccovveiiiiien e
Consumable SUPPHES... ...... vt i iieiit et vt et et e e e e
TElEPRONE. .. .o it oottt et e et e e s e e e e e e e e
HATAWATE. .. ..o e et e et v et et e e e e e s
MISCEHANEOUS. .. .. vt et et ettt e e et et e ettt et cee e eee e
Unleaded gasoline. ... ... ...t ivriiriit i et it e e st e e es et vt e s e e s
Diesel fuel...........
Oil & lubrication....................
Repairs & maintenance (gas sys).
Repairs and maintenance. .

Miscellaneous materials...
Bituminous concrete..........
Drainage materials...............
Sand & Gravel.....o.oo oot e e e e e e eee
LUMDBET. . oot e e e et e e e e
Pavement treatmEntS. .. ......veeuutveriit it e e sre e res v et ers en s rarees e
Safety & ProteCtIVE. .. ...veeis it e et eee et et e st e e v aee s aee s
Land damage... ... ... .cviiiit it i e e e e e e e e
Sidewalk FEPAIS... ....veuii ittt ie ettt et et vt et s et e e
Street signs... ...
Tree trimming,
Tree removal... ..

Clothing allowance
Training & education

Highway equiPImISnt.........oeoiiiiiiiis it ittt it st ees e et et e e e e
Road Maintenance. .. .............couiiiiiis vt et e et e e
Material disposal.............coooiiiiiii i
Cemetery UPKEED... ... ..ot i i e et
Catch basin cleaning dep mndt..........c..cooco v vviinien i
Garage diagnostic equip & t00l..........c..oivieiiiiiriiiiin i e
Tree mgmt plan/tree planting............cc.ooever i vicni i con e v e v e e
Snow removal labor..
Materials............
Meal AlOWANCE. .. ... ... ettt it e et et e e et e et e s e

TOTAL HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT...........ooooviiiiies

200
600
3,500

200
600
3,500

200
1,075
2,862

(475)
638

4,300

4,300

4,137

163

900
5,000

900
5,000

150
4,106

750
894

5,900

5,900

4,256

1,644

407,788

407,788

376,460

31,328

92,474
1,005,604
71,342
21,920
350
2,325
1,000
13,000
1,250
5,500
55,000
4,500
2,000
105,000
1,000
30,000
10,000
21,750
7,500
319,000
13,000
700
60,000
8,500
15,000
15,000
9,600
3,500
12,250
10,000
10,000
3,000
17,000
4,000
5,000
120,000
12,000
4,900

92,474
1,004,412
71,342
21,920
350
2,325
1,000
13,523
1,250
6,599
56,544
4,500
2,000
92,820
1,000
30,000
10,647
21,750
7,500
330,538
13,000
700
60,669
8,500
1,309
15,000
9,600
3,500
32,080
6,815
1,000
3,000
17,000
4,000
2,357
145,871
12,000
4,900

92,473
1,001,385
71,548
21,031
161
1,440
463
15,050
1,334
6,599
56,619
4375
2,050
92,743
126
30,000
14,849
22,240
4434
330,538
13,550
671
66,767
8,192
800
15,995
9,417
3,605
30,112
6,163
1,000
1,395
17,000
3,862

149,333
7,591
5,847

3,027
(206)
(1
189
885
537
(1,527)
(34)
(75)
125
(50)
77
874

(4,202)
(490)
3,066
(550)
29
(6,098)
308
500
(995)
183
(105)
1,968
652

1,605

138

2,357
(3,462)

4,409
(947)

2,093,965

2,113,795

2,111,658

2,137
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GENERAL FUND - SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CONTINUED)

VARIANCE
ORIGINAL FINAL WITH FINAL
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

SANITATION AND WASTE REMOVAL

Sal.of recyching/sol WSt MGE... ... it iiit i e e e $ 73,862 $ 73,862 $ 73,863 $ [0))
General ADOT. .. ... oo vt i e e e e e e e e e 321,098 321,098 311,164 9,934
Clerical SAIAMIES. .. ... ve vt ves it cee vt et et vt ree s et e et e e st e bee e e e 37,706 37,706 37,758 (52)
POSEARE. .. oottt it et et e e e e e ee e e e e ees eee i ces i e 3,000 3,000 3,000 -

AQVETHISITZ. .. 11t et ittt eet vt et vee oo et eee e e e e e e e et ces e e en e 2,500 2,500 522 1,978
Consumable SUPPHES............ it 700 1,200 1,162 38
Reproduction & printing. 2,000 2,000 2,000
Equipment............... 200 200 200
Prof assoc. & publicati 300 300 40 260
Clothing allowance... 3,150 3,150 3,100 50
Training & education. . 1 1 1
Unleaded gasoline... ... ......ooiviiet ot et e e i e e e e 5,000 5,000 3,946 1,054
DIESE] FUBL. .. ... ettt et et e e et e e e e e e 7,500 7,500 6,706 794
R0ad MAINENANCE. .. ... vee it it e it it iee cen et et et et e ee s ine eeenes 5,000 5,000 2,889 2,111
UHIES. .. 1eevee et veeit et e st e et e e et e cee e e e e e e e et e e e 6,500 6,500 4,362 2,138
General OPETAtIONS. .. ... uvisuiriee it vt ersianees srsbee ereeas eenaesan eencoe e ree seeeee 65,000 116,500 97,680 18,820
Parts & 1abOr... ..o oot e 25,000 34,000 25,962 8,038
LS PIOPEILY. .. ... it vttt ees vt cee veevesvae et bt cesmee eeenrtaae bas sen eoneee st ane e 1 1 1
Grading & SEEdINE...... ... .evuvtireirs vt ere s vae cee it e et eeaee e tee e ee e 1,000 1,000 246 754
Water testing & monitoring.. 30,000 30,000 23,863 6,137
Cap maintenance... ... 8,000 8,000 8,000
Disposal fees (SCRRA)......... . 780,000 719,000 702,553 16,447
Residential collection (SCRRA)... ... . ivvvivveieiiieies oo e vee e vr e 483,400 483,400 464,956 18,444
Comm coll & rentals (SCRRAY..........couiiiiir it e 710,000 710,000 637,950 72,050
SCRRA CONSUIMINE. .. ..o iiiiit ittt et i ce et e et e e e e 1 1 1
SCRRA CONTIDULION. .. ... cn vt et et cer it et s e et e bt e 1 1 1
Diesel fuel (SCRRA tTaNSPOTt)... ... ... ovviteseriitt et eeneee it e ces e eee neees 22,000 22,000 13,212 8,788
Repairs & maint (SCRRA (raNS8)... ... v vt iiriie cos vt eee vercen s veesin vt veeeee iraes 17,000 17,000 14,844 2,156
SCRRA receptacle costs...... .. 110,000 110,000 93,015 16,985
Furniture & eqUIPMENt.........vvviveeer it vee iy it eee e et st arebe et aes s reeve s 1 1 1

ons.

TOTAL SANITATION AND WASTE REMOVAL............ccocooveeiiiinn 2,719,921 2,719,921 2,522,793 197,128

ENGINEERING SERVICES
TOWI @IEINEET. .. ..\ ve s ivseeeees oo i eeeeas es bas et aeeeieeetaeeee vt aee ees et reees e 77,852 77,852 77,852 -
Clerical SAIAMES. .. ... ..o it it et et e e e e e e 21,620 21,685 21,685 -
Professional SErVICes......... e ooriit ittt et e e 8,000 8,000 9,835 (1,835)
Phase I SLOMMWALET TOq.... ... .. v ee vt evn et een ot riee e ebcen e e sen v s eee e 1,000 1,000 1,278 (278)
ERPEISES. .. et ieetit it it et ees eee et e e e en e e e e 3,500 3,500 3,323 177
2,000 2,000 2,000

Prof serv engineering review.............ccooovriivivniee veeien e

TOTAL ENGINEERING SERVICES..........coooiviiiiiiiniiniiiiiie st e 113,972 114,037 113,973 64

OPERATION & MAINTENANCE TOWN BLD/PROP
Janitorial/maintenance salary... ...t iei i e
Miscellaneous... ........c.c.....c..

50,536 50,536 49,904 632
. 2,000 2,000 1,796 204
Heating 0l ... oou vt vttt e e e e e e 65,150 65,150 50,075 15,075
EICHICTEY .. ..o vt et et et st e e et et e et s e e e s 143,950 143,950 135,163 8,787
WBEET. .. Lt e et et e ot et e e e e e e e e e e e 4,801 4,801 4,242 559
SWET LIS, .. uu s tee it e te eee s et ettt ee e e eee e e e e e e e e e et e aeaae i 3,490 3,490 1,548 1,942
General MaIMtENANCE. .. ... ...ttt it et vt e ees ees eee vt e rs e e e e et aeeeee cans 141,250 161,167 149,757 11,410
Street HEhtNG. .. ..o.vviit ot e e e e e e e e 242,000 242,000 237,665 4,335

TOTAL OPERATION & MAINTENANCE TOWN BLD/PROP............... 653,177 673,094 630,150 42,944
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ORIGINAL
BUDGET

FINAL
BUDGET

ACTUAL

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL
BUDGET

BUILDING OFFICIAL
Building official..
Clerical salaries..
Postage.........

Consumable supplies... .

Reproduction & Prilting............coovieiueivs oo ies seniee et eee s are et eee e vee e e
Telephone. .. ...t s e e
Equipment...... ..o vieviennn

Prof assoc. & PubliCations... ... ......vvvr ettt e e e e
Clothing alloWanCe. .. ..........oeier it ier it e e e et e
Training & edUCAtion. .. .......c.ueeveier ettt e eeee s et e e e e e
Furniture & equipment..
Technical asSIStANCE. .. ... ... o iiiiiiit it vee e et e e e e e e e e

TOTAL BUILDING OFFICIAL............ccoov v e

WATER POLLUTION CONTROL AUTHORITY

Clerical SAIATIES. .. ... oo unieeiis vt s e e ces et ees et b et et ee e e e e ae s
POSTAZE. .. oot tvt it et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e
AGVETHSING. .. o\ vt et e eee it et eee eee et e e e ee e e tee e e e eneee e e
Consumable SUPPHES. .. ..ottt e
Reproduction & Printifg... ... ......vuevriirtveriieoe it et ere et ee oot vee e vae v aa
Telephone.................

Equipment..............
Furniture & eqUIPMENt. .. ... ..ooeiiieis et aiiins v es et e e vee e e aneee s e

TOTAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL AUTHORITY ..........c..ccee.
TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS..........coooiviiccennn
POLICE DEPARTMENT

POLICE SERVICES
Salary of chief..........covvviiii e e
Salary 0f CAPLAINL.. ... v it et et et e een e e e e e s
Salary of lieutenants..
Salary of sergeants.......
Salary of regular officers.....
Janitorial/maintenance salary...
Boating safety personnel.....
Training personnel SeIVICes... ... c..vvuvieriveverveeverieeveneen o ceeenoanes
Communications specialist.............ccoveuiee i conieriec it oo e s
Communications specialist OVErtime.............cvuie vt vrceniveie et vneeeie e

Communications specailist Uniforms............oeovveioviie i esvneere e e
Community ervice OffiCers.............couut vt oiiiis o iee i tee e e eee e e
Special OffiCers..........coiii vt
Police commission clerical
School crossing guards..
Animal control salaries.
Clerical salaries....

Regular overtime .
POSEAZE. .. ..ot e e e e e s
AdVertising... ..o vevvr oo cn e

Consumable SUPPHES. .. ... .ovviiveveriieits ety cer e vee e e e e vee e e
Reproduction & Printing... ... ... eee et vie it oo iee e cs e e rs e ee s
Equipment.............c......el

Prof assoc. & publications... ... ... .co.iviiecvr i ier e e e e
MISCEIIANEOUS. .. ... .iv v et it v et e e e e et oot cen e et s et e et en e
Caning PrOZIAIML .. ... ..ottt it ettt vt cen et et et et et et e en et srere can esene e s
Furniture & eqUiPment. .. ..........cvv s ververvs st eer es e evs s evevee e
TeleCOMMUNICAIONS. .. ... ... .c ot veeiiereire et ee e e e ee e et e e e e
Retirement fund... ... ........ccoctimiiiiin et e e et et et e
PRYSICAIS. .. ...t e e e e e
Educational INCENIVE. .. .......veuvt ittt oot et et et et s evn et v ae eaneen et e
Regular officers.........oooiiiiiiie i it s et et e e
Special officers. .. ... ...voiiiiiii it it st e

74,312
21,620
750
700
1,000
575
4,000
2,000
400
500

1

1,000

74,312
21,682
750
573
1,000
575
4,000
2,000
400
500

1

1,000

74,312
21,682
750
265
749

89
3,049
498
400

308
251
486
951
1,502

500

1,000

106,858

106,793

101,794

4,999

65,600
5,500

1
2,500
2,500
100
5,000
1

65,600
5,500

1
2,500
2,500
100
5,000
1

65,146
5,472

2,162
900
57
4,026

454
28

338
1,600
43
974

81,202

81,202

77,763

3,439

5,769,095

5,808,842

5,558,131

250,711

97,651
91,815
159,256
430,841
1,647,776
67,267
12,000
70,000
359,561
18,000
3,600
19,000
12,500
4,500
44,153
50,094
113,731
130,000
3,200
1,200
16,000
5,000
12,000
1,500
7,000
1,500
3,000
89,000
476,000
5,500
6,000
24,000
1,000

70

97,651
91,815
159,256
430,841
1,647,776
67,267
12,000
70,000
359,561
18,000
3,600
19,000
12,500
4,500
44,153
50,094
113,731
130,000
3,200
1,200
16,000
5,000

12,000 °

1,500
7,000
1,500
3,000
89,000
476,000
5,500
6,000
24,000
1,000

97,651
91,815
163,356
434,332
1,598,938
66,518
7,669
57,838
356,276
14,605
3,150
16,384
11,063
1,500
39,283
52,038
113,595
127,516
1,905
1,279
15,313
4,731
10,354
1,504
6,390
1,228
2,975
88,277
474,968
1,689
613
22,155
285

(4,100)
(3,491)
48,838
749
4331
12,162
3,285
3,395
450
2,616
1,437
3,000
4,870
(1,944)
136
2,484
1,295
(79
687
269
1,646
o4
610
272
25
723
1,032
3,811
5,387
1,845
715
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ORIGINAL
BUDGET

FINAL
BUDGET

ACTUAL

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL
BUDGET

POLICE SERVICES (CONTINUED)

Outfithing NEW OFfICEIS... ... vt ovivis it e vt e s e e et e e e
Service officer's SQUIPMENL... ... .o oo oo vee it ceiee e et cee st eee e e e e
Boating safety eXPenses... ... ... cc.ue i ieeirt oee ettt ee e e e e
Building maintenance. .. ...... ...ccovvivt oo v eee i ee s cee e ot s e e
Maintenance/operations/Tadios. .. ...........iuveuveoeiisiesiienie ot cr et e
Traffic signs & signals................oi i
Law enforcement COUnCil... ... .....cooivuvieiriitvenieein ee eee e e e eee e ces s
Drug program..........
Paid holidays..
Postage... ...
Advertising..
Consumable supplies.
MISCEILATEOUS. .. ... e et ee ittt et it et eee et e et e re e ae s
Consumable SUPPHES. .. ... ..o iii it vt et et et et e e e e
MISCEIlANEOUS. ... oot vt et e et e e e e e
THAINMNG. .. .0 et ee et oo et e et e es ce e ee ce e et b e s e bt e bae e n e e
TIEPROME. .. ..ot iit ittt et et e e et e e e e e e
Clothing allowance.............c.....cceiire v

Equipment (emergency Vehicles)... ... .. ..vvivtieriesiiiie eiitiee e ee e e
Unleaded gasoline. .. ............oooiiiiiiiiiiiii i v et e
Oil & lubrication...
Parts & labor.....
TTIT@S ..o ettt e e et et e e et et et e e e ek e e e e e e ee

TOTAL POLICE SERVICES.......c.ocoiiiiiiiiiiiie e e e
DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES

Human services direCtOT... ... ... voieeiit ettt vt e vt e e cee e
Social services adminiStrator. .. ... ... .. oie oo ieeie st ey e e
Youth & family serv. adm...........cooiiiiniii
Human Services Prograim COOT... ... ..uut vt vt rreeeriee ot eer eeeineees s eresinves anas
Youth services program coor...
Counseling services...........

Clerical salaries... ..
Postage.......c.oovvviiiiiieienenn
Consumable SUPPIIES. .. ... ... cviuvt v ittt vt et e et et ees et e e
Telephone. .. ..ot i e e e e

EQUIPIEIE. .. ..ottt et it et e e e e s e
Reproduction & Prilting... ..........vv v vveuie vt verirs ittt e et cee e es s e e
Prof assoc. & publiCations...... ... ....ouut it vt vt vt vt v vt et e e e e e
Youth & family sveS Prog exp..........covveueiveiirniinit e

General aSSISTANCE. .. ... ... .. vtit it it e ettt e e e e
Community safety program..
Miscellaneous... ... ...
Furniture & equipment..
Ttraining & education................,

TOTAL OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES... ... ..ot e

COMMISSION ON AGING
Postage..........c.ccovviiniiiicin
Reproduction & Printing... .......cc.coivieviiiiit ottt e et e e es s e
PrOGIam eXPENSE. .. ... iivveiit i ie e et et cee s vt st eee e et et e et ae v e

TOTAL COMMISSION ON AGING...... oo cvviievt i vt e

5,000
1,500
8,500
19,000
6,500
40,000
11,248
5,500
110,474
180
1,000
300
750
5,500
1,000
14,000
600
1,000
6,000
80,000
3,000
38,000
6,500

5,000
1,500
8,500
19,000
6,500
40,000
11,248
5,500
110,474
180
1,000
300
750
5,500
1,000
14,000
600
1,000
6,000
80,000
3,000
38,000
6,500

5,259
271
6,605
25,592
5,413
37,702
11,239
5,071
107,751
101

20

683
6,724
161
10,419
504
854
5412
85,788
1,068
27,621
6,493

(259)
1,229
1,895

(6,592)
1,087
2,298
9
429
2,723
79
1,000
280
67

(1,224)

839
3,581
96
146
588

(5,788)
1,932

10,379

7

4,349,197

4,349,197

4,238,034

111,163

75,553
58,881
54,347
32,830
26,885
36,935
57,209
1,500
2,500
3,500
3,700
3,750
1,500
7,800
30,000
1

500
1,700
1,000

75,553
58,881
54,347
32,830
26,885
36,935
57,209
1,500
2,500
3,500
3,700
3,750
1,500
7,800
30,000
1

500
1,700
1,000

75,553
58,881
54,347
32,481
26,885
23,645
57,209
1,423
2,500
1,634
6,127
3,750
939
7,800
29,920

500
2,515
185

349

13,290

77

1,866
(2,427)

561

80

1

(815)
815

400,091

400,091

386,294

13,797

2,500
1,100
2,200

2,500
1,100
2,200

1,835
1,100
2,380

665

(180)

5,800

5,800

5315

485
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(Continued)



SCHEDULE 2

(11 of 12)
TOWN OF STONINGTON, CONNECTICUT

GENERAL FUND - SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CONTINUED)

VARIANCE
ORIGINAL FINAL WITH FINAL
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

RECREATION
Salary O dIFECLOT. .. ... vt vv et vee v et et vt et e $ 48,433 $ 48,433 $ 48,432 $ 1
Other SAIAMES. .. ...t ies et es et et e e ees et s e e eee e e 17,007 17,007 15,933 1,074
Consumable SUPPHES. .. ... ... v ver et e iee e e et e e s e e e e s 2,550 2,550 2,550 -
TelEPRONE. .. ... iiiii it it e 600 600 559 41
PrOGIAM @XPEIISE. .. co. vttt iit et erevr it et teetee ot et ere et et aae eee et e e e 4,200 4,200 4,620 (420)
Equipment & trophies 1,600 1,600 1,596 4
Parts & labor... 8,750 8,750 7,756 994
Utilities............... 1,500 1,500 2,245 (745)
Officials & instructors... 10,094 10,094 11,166 (1,072)

900 900 777 123

Professional 8ss0C / trailliNg ... ... ... .ceuutveetiee ot eeecen et e e s e

TOTAL RECREATION. .. ... ittt v et e 95,634 95,634 95,634 -

HOUSING AUTHORITY
Clerical SAlAMIES. .. .......oouiiiit it ies e et e e e 600 600 450 150

LIBRARIES
Westerly public THbrary... ... ..ottt v e 86,810 86,810 86,810 -
Stonington free library... . 115,000 115,000 115,000 -
Mystic & Noank liDrary.......oooeeiovin e et e s e et e e e e aee 65,000 65,000 65,000 -
Stonington hiStorical SOCIELY... ... ....ve e vt ieriit e it et it e e e 3,000 3,000 3,000 -

TOTAL LIBRARIES.........ccoiiiiii e s e e 269,810 269,810 269,810 -

OUTSIDE AGENCIES N
Public health & NUISING. .. ...ttt e e e e e 23,028 23,028 23,028 -
Pawcatuck neighborhood center................ooooiin i 98,000 98,000 98,000 -
Como senior citizens center... .. e 40,501 40,501 40,501 -
Mystic area shelter & hosp... 4,000 4,000 4,000 -
Westerly area rest and meals. 6,000 6,000 6,000 -
Westerly adult day services.. . 7,500 7,500 7,500 -
Big Brothers/Big Sisters......... . 1,500 1,500 1,500
Community vOCRHONAL SETVICES. .. ... vt vt eeees it re eeeeeeinvnnaee cve s ais i aae e 1,500 1,500 1,500
TV.C CLA i e e e et e e et e e e e e s e 1,000 1,000 1,000 -
Stonington prevention COUNCIL...... ... .o vt o cir s aer rees ceseervee ceevaecvnarnes 500 500 500
New London homeless hospitality............coovee v iniie ot e e e e 1,500 1,500 1,500 -

TOTAL OUTSIDE AGENCIES... .......cooooiiiii i v 185,029 185,029 183,529 1,500

TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES..........ccccoooe e 956,964 956,964 941,032 15,932

BOARD OF EDUCATION

Education eXpenditiures. .. ... ........ v e iieieeaeeiit it s eer s e e e s e e 31,395,910 31,395,910 31,076,695 319,215
ARRA gov serv teacher salary...............c...o..e 104,510 (104,510)
ARRA ed grants teacher Salary.............cooveeiiiesieie ot et e e een s 189,552 (189,552)

TOTAL EDUCATION. .. ...t e e e e 31,395,910 31,395,910 31,370,757 25,153

(Continued)
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SCHEDULE 2

(12 of 12)
TOWN OF STONINGTON, CONNECTICUT
GENERAL FUND - SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CONCLUDED)
VARIANCE
ORIGINAL WITH FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET
OTHER FINANCING USES:
Transfers out:
Capital NONIECUITINE. .. ..e v tee it et ire et ee it tee et cee e sen aneesanbbe e 659,535 729,535 $ -
Sewer usage fund..........ooo e 330,000 330,000 -
Miscellaneous fund.............c.oieieiiiiiie i e e e 78,928 78,928 -
Dog license fund... ... .. ..o cveiiecie et e ces e e e e e s 3,500 3,500 -
Recreation commission fund..........cc.oocieiii i s i e e 1,000 1,000 -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING USES.........iioviiiiieireecver e e 1,072,963 1,142,963 -
GRAND TOTAL - EXPENDITURES AND
OTHER FINANCING USES.......ccooiiiiiit i i ee e e e e 54,760,546 54,490,956 3 663,870
(Concluded)
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SCHEDULE 3

REPORT OF TAX COLLECTOR
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

174

TRANSFERS TO

GRAND UNCOLLECTED LAWFUL CORRECTIONS SUSPENSE ADJUSTED COLLECTIONS UNCOLLECTED

LIST TAXES CURRENT AND OTHER AMOUNT INTEREST TAXES
YEAR JULY 1, 2010 LEVY ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS ADJUSTMENTS COLLECTIBLE TAXES AND LIENS TOTAL JUNE 30, 2011

1994 $ 57§ $ $ 57§ $ $ $ $ -3 -
1995 43 124 167 124 306 430 43
1996 275 197 472 198 470 668 274
1997 279 140 419 140 309 449 279
1998 566 566 58 106 164 508
1999 2,592 290 2,882 358 726 1,084 2,524
2000 2,673 213 2,886 281 508 789 2,605
2001 2,806 351 3,157 423 697 1,120 2,734
2002 4,458 184 4,642 1,888 1,889 3,777 2,754
2003 5,047 140 5,187 1,478 1,710 3,188 3,709
2004 4,387 327 243 1,127 5,598 1,561 1,481 3,042 4,037
2005 6,603 329 261 564 7,235 1,186 1,306 2,492 6,049
2006 17,225 797 423 1,299 18,898 4,324 3,421 7,745 14,574
2007 132,592 11,571 100,348 (2,045) 41,770 2,217 20,862 23,079 39,553
2008 628,039 11,037 160,876 (9,801) 468,399 333,741 95,480 429,221 134,658

TOTAL

PRIOR

YEARS 807,642 - 24,061 262,208 (7,217) 562,278 347,977 129,271 477,248 214,301
2009 48,695,798 40,411 214,680 9,821) 48,511,708 47,832,323 160,043 47,992,366 679,385

TOTALS $ 807,642 § 48,695,798 § 64,472 $ 476,888 $ (17,038) § 49,073,986 § 48,180,300 § 289,314 $§ 48469,614 § 893,686




Nonmajor
Governmental
Funds

Special Revenue Funds

Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to expenditure for
particular purposes.

Capital Project Funds

Capital project funds are used to account for the acquisition and construction of major capital assets other than
those financed by proprietary and trust funds.



SCHEDULE 4

1y

(1 of 4)
TOWN OF STONINGTON, CONNECTICUT
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2011
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
YOUTH
SEWER TOWN AID SNEFLA SERVICE
ASSESSMENT SHELLFISH ROAD DOG LICENSE RESERVE ACTIVITY
FUND FUND FUND FUND FUND FUND
ASSETS
CSRntieee ettt ettt e et renn $ 84,513 $ 63,807 $ $ 4,332 $ 40,512 $ 187,982
INVESHMIENES. .. .eeeeereceeeeeeireeretree e cveeeneeeseresssessseessarassessserensessans 4,459 83,429
Receivables:
Assessments/use Charges......ooveveceeiiecrecieececeeeeesee e, 28,859
Due from other funds........oooeueiieeeceeeeeceeeeeeeeeevvee e eeenaeenn 103,347 12,231 1,232
TOTAL ASSETS. .ot te et ts et eeseaenaas $ 117,831 $ 63,807 $ 103,347 $ 16,563 $ 123,941 $ 189,214
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable.......ccccvieierreriereeiecreren e et ennns $ $ 42 $ 125 $ 13,558 $ $ 10,397
Due t0 Other fUNAS........oouvieeieneieeeeeee ettt ceveteee e eneenne 4,066 8,649
Deferred revenue..........ceceeeeeenveeeeeeveeeeecreeeensennnas 28,859
TOTAL LIABILITIES. ...t eeie e e 28,859 4,108 125 13,558 - 19,046
FUND BALANCES:
Restricted.........ceevveeveeceeieenenn, 88,972 103,222
Committed 59,699 123,941
Assigned.... 3,005 170,168
TOTAL FUND BALANCES.........oooeieeeereeeeeeteeeeenenn, 88,972 59,699 103,222 3,005 123,941 170,168
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES........c.ccc...... $ 117,831 $ 63,807 $ 103,347 $ 16,563 $ 123,941 $ 189,214

(Continued)
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SCHEDULE 4

(2 of 4)
TOWN OF STONINGTON, CONNECTICUT
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
UNITED WAY SEWER STATE
COMMUNITY RECREATION EVICTION SEWER DEVELOPMENT ASSETS
DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION PREVENTION INFILTRATION AND MAINTEN- FORFEITURE
BLOCK GRANT FUND FUND FUND ANCE FUND PROGRAM
ASSETS
CaSh.uereieeerereeeeetee et $ 19,075 $ 162,321 $ $ 30,801 $ 3,986 $ 3,639
INVESHTIENES. . .eeeeceiivreeccriceeeieeeceeerereeesasresessreessaneessrrssessesssnanes 505,294
Receivables:
LOANS...... it 224,200
Due from other funds...........ocoovieeiiioieeeeeceeeeeeee e 98,513
TOTAL ASSETS.....eeeeeeveeenes $ 243275 $ 162,321 $ - $ 30,801 $ 607,793 $ 3,639
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable......... $ $ 21,348 $ $ $ 49,109 $
Due to other funds...........ccueeneeee. 994 17,494
Deferred reVenUE. ......ccoceiieeeeeeeeeeeee e eee e aeeenens 224,200
Unearned revenue..........cccoevveueene. 18,081
TOTAL LIABILITIES......cooitieeeeereereeeeeseeseessresaerenssenns 243,275 38,842 - - 49,109 -
FUND BALANCES:
RESIIACIEA. ... veurerereierieercreiereree st esee e srnsse s e s e e sssrressessnnsans 3,639
Committed 30,801 558,684
ASSIENE. ...cveeirerreieieieeereeiesieeeeseeesretasseteressesesessessenseansenens 123,479
TOTAL FUND BALANCES......cteieeeeeietereeeeeeeeeeeeenenenns - 123,479 - 30,801 558,684 3,639
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES.................... $ 243,275 $ 162,321 $ - $ 30,801 $ 607,793 $ 3,639

(Continued)



TOWN OF STONINGTON, CONNECTICUT
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SCHEDULE 4

Intergovernmental
Due from other funds

TOTAL ASSETS

LL

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Unearned revenue

TOTAL LIABILITIES

FUND BALANCES:

TOTAL FUND BALANCES

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

(3 of4)
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FEDERAL
ASSETS EDUCATION HOT HUMAN
FORFEITURE LUNCH SERVICES
PROGRAM PROGRAM GRANT
$ 2,609 $ 101,460 $
45,805
29,069
$ 2,609 $ 147,265 $ 29,069
$ $ $ 1,177
23,367
- - 24,544
2,609 147,265 4,525
2,609 147,265 4,525
$ 2,609 $ 147,265 $ 29,069

(Continued)
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SCHEDULE 4

(4 of4)
TOWN OF STONINGTON, CONNECTICUT
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET (CONCLUDED)
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
CAPITAL
PROJECTS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS FUNDS
TOTAL
NONMAJOR
CAPITAL GOVERNMENTAL
MISCELLANEOUS TOTAL NONRECURRING FUNDS
ASSETS
CaSML ettt $ 10,261 877,925 $ 1,203,420 $ 2,081,345
INVESIMENLS. ....coeeiiiiiiieieiceceei et sneet et eenenenens 237,659 830,841 850,024 1,680,865
Receivables:
LOAMS. .ottt nres 224,200 224,200
Assessments/use Charges.............occeveeueeeeeeieeeeseeeeeeeereeenes 28,859 28,859
Intergovernmental..................cooooiiiiiieieee 45,805 45,805
Due from other funds.............ccooeeiiiiiieiieeeeeeeeeeeee s 67,593 311,985 3,965 315,950
TOTAL ASSETS. ... $ 315,513 2,319,615 $ 2,057,409 $ 4,377,024
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable...........c....ooooiiiiiiii e $ 54,365 159,402 $ 25,621 $ 185,023
Due to other funds. 98,834 232,589 232,589
Deferred revenue... 253,059 253,059
UNeamed rEVEIUE. ..........c.ooeeioiieeieeeeieeee e ee et sveens 19,464 110,362 110,362
TOTAL LIABILITIES. ..o 172,663 755,412 25,621 781,033
FUND BALANCES:
RESITICLEA. ...t 350,232 350,232
Committed... 773,125 2,031,788 2,804,913
ASSIZNEA. ..ottt aaneas 142,850 440,846 440,846
TOTAL FUND BALANCES. ...t 142,850 1,564,203 2,031,788 3,595,991
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES.................... $ 315,513 2,319,615 $ 2,057,409 $ 4,377,024

(Concluded)



6.

SCHEDULE 5

(1 of 4)
TOWN OF STONINGTON, CONNECTICUT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
YOUTH
SEWER TOWN AID SNEFLA SERVICE
ASSESSMENT SHELLFISH ROAD DOG LICENSE " RESERVE ACTIVITY
FUND FUND FUND FUND FUND FUND
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental..................o.evemververresseseeeersnssssernens $ $ $ 149,498 $ $ $
Charges for SETVICES.......c.covvuvuvurvuerercrennes . 26,197 13,295 9,416 12,500 74,727
Income from investments... 117 189 136 474
759 13,027
TOTAL REVENUES ..o 26,314 13,484 149,498 10,175 12,636 88,228
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government............. 10,786 6,643 30,559
Public Safety........c.ocooveeeieieceieeeee e 8,090 7,427
Highway department..............ocooceeerereonenieeireencierenns 145,706
Recreation... 18,475
Education. ... 23,958
TOTAL EXPENDITURES.......cooooimiimnineeriniereninireeeeees - 10,786 145,706 14,733 - 80,419
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES.......coiiiietieceeeeeeceiesenein 26,314 2,698 3,792 (4,558) 12,636 7,809
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers iil......ooeorreiiceeaeeee e e e 3,500 5,463
Transfers out. UPTU (100,000)
NET OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)............ (100,000) - - 3,500 - 5,463
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES..................... (73,686) 2,698 3,792 (1,058) 12,636 13,272
FUND BALANCES - JULY 1,2010.......c.ocoiviinnes, 162,658 57,001 99,430 4,063 111,305 156,896
FUND BALANCES - JUNE 30,2011.........c.oo e $ 88,972 $ 59,699 $ 103,222 3 3,005 $ 123,941 $ 170,168

(Continued)
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SCHEDULE 5

(2 of 4)
TOWN OF STONINGTON, CONNECTICUT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (CONTINUED)
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
UNITED WAY SEWER STATE
COMMUNITY RECREATION EVICTION SEWER DEVELOPMENT ASSETS
DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION PREVENTION INFILTRATION AND MAINTEN- FORFEITURE
BLOCK GRANT FUND FUND FUND ANCE FUND PROGRAM
REVENUES:
Charges for services....... $ 2,453 $ 95,383 $ $ $ 102,366 $
Income from investments.. 331 92 874
ONET .. 2,450 585
TOTAL REVENUES. ........oiiiiiiieiniece e 2,453 98,164 - 92 103,240 585
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government.................cccoveiviieinnocicee s 2,453 8,626
Public safety. 46,939 585
Recreation...... 111,159
Capital outlay 75,656
TOTAL EXPENDITURES..........cooiiiiieeieeeeas 2,453 119,785 - - 122,595 585
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES.........c.ooiirtiinieiitrinceeeeeseseieeeeenenene - (21,621) - 92 (19,355) -
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in 1,000
Transfers out (3,081)
NET OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)............. - 1,000 (3,081) - - -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES..................... - (20,621) (3,081) 92 (19,355) -
FUND BALANCES - JULY 1,2010.......ccoiiiiiiannn. 144,100 3,081 30,709 578,039 3,639
FUND BALANCES -JUNE 30, 2011.........ccoocviieiienn $ - $ 123,479 $ - $ 30,801 $ 558,684 $ 3,639

(Continued)
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SCHEDULE 5

(3 of 4)
TOWN OF STONINGTON, CONNECTICUT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (CONTINUED)
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FEDERAL PREPAID STONINGTON
ASSETS EDUCATION HOT SOCIAL HUMAN
FORFEITURE GRANTS DARE LUNCH SERVICES SERVICES
PROGRAM FUND PROGRAM PROGRAM FUEL BANK GRANT
REVENUES:
INtErgOVEINMENtal........c.eururieeccmrmeieieceei et eeseseieneene $ $ 1,017,313 $ $ 312,280 $ $ 33,434
Charges fOr SETVICES.......c.ovurueuieieienerieeieeeeeic e eeeereeneieens 598,296 1,090
Income from INVEStMENtS.......cccceovvrorruerieieieiiieesiecineen 1 489
OHHET. ..ottt 410 100
TOTAL REVENUES........cooiiiiiiiiieteeeeee e 411 1,017,313 100 911,065 - 34,524
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General GOVEIMMENL. .........c...cirrmrereereeeecrreneeeereernenrineee 1,300 178
Public Safety.......ocoviiiiie e 33,434
BAUCAtiON.......ooooiiiiieeeeeeeee et 1,017,313 944,389
TOTAL EXPENDITURES........ceiitiiieirieeieeeeeenene 1,300 1,017,313 - 944,389 - 33,612
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES.....cooiiitiiieieneeeececeeiee et (889) - 100 (33,324) - 912
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers OUL.........coeeveuiieuiieeeeieieiee et eereae e e e eae e (2,382)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES.............cc..... (889) - 100 (33,324) (2,382) 912
FUND BALANCES -JULY 1,2010...........covvviinnn. 3,498 1,244 180,589 2,382 3,613
FUND BALANCES -JUNE 30,2011.........ccooiiiiiiien. $ 2,609 $ - $ 1,344 $ 147,265 $ - $ 4,525

(Continued)
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SCHEDULE 3

(4 of 4)
TOWN OF STONINGTON, CONNECTICUT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (CONCLUDED)
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
CAPITAL
PROJECTS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS FUNDS
TOTAL
DEBT NONMAJOR
SERVICE CAPITAL GOVERNMENTAL
MISCELLANEOUS TOTAL FUND NONRECURRING FUNDS
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental..............ccccooiinioiincneiieeeenenee $ 181,184 $ 1,693,709 $ 9,000 $ 1,702,709
Charges for services... 935,723 58,975 994,698
Income from INVESHMENLS............ooviririririiieecereeeeceanaeene 734 3,437 552 5,269 9,258
Other.......coovveoevnccnn 1,224 18,555 18,555
TOTAL REVENUES...........cooiiircenincieenerereresieneaees 183,142 2,651,424 552 73,244 2,725,220
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government............coocevcceenennes 78,426 138,971 138,971
Public safety 14,465 110,940 110,940
Highway department. 119,348 265,054 265,054
Recreation..........c..cccov... 129,634 129,634
Education. 1,985,660 1,985,660
Capital outlay.... 82,880 158,536 915,737 1,074,273
TOTAL EXPENDITURES......c.cocoiiiiiiminiateneeaenineas 295,119 158,536 - 915,737 3,704,532
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES.......cocooiiiiimiiinninceceer e eicicesieneee (111,977) 2,492,888 552 (842,493) (979,312)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
TIANSTETS IML.eveeieri et e e 78,928 88,891 729,535 818,426
TTANSTETS QUL receare et e (383,354) (488,817) (499,162) (987,979)
NET OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)............ (304,426) (399,926) (499,162) 729,535 (169,553)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES..................... (416,403) 2,092,962 (498,610) (112,958) (1,148,865)
FUND BALANCES - JULY 1, 2010 (AS RESTATED)... 559,253 2,101,500 498,610 2,144,746 4,744,856
FUND BALANCES -JUNE 30,2011.........ccocceeie . $ 142,850 $ 4,194,462 - $ 2,031,788 $ 3,595,991

(Concluded)



Fiduciary
Funds

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the Town in a trustee capacity for individuals, private
organizations or other governments.

Private-Purpose Trust Funds

A fiduciary trust fund type used to report all trust arrangements, other than those properly reported in pension trust
funds or investment trust funds, under which principal and income benefit individuals, private organizations, or
other governments.

Agency Funds

Agency funds are used to report resources held by the reporting government in a purely custodial capacity (assets
equal liabilities).



JOWN OF STONINGTON, CONNECTICUT

AGENCY FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

SCHEDULE 6

BALANCE BALANCE
JULY 1, 2010 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS JUNE 30, 2011
ASSETS
CASH:
Student ACHVILY....cccceovee it $ 308,927 $ 940,463 $ 955,795 $ 293,595
Tax 8218 ESCTOW.....vvvvrvier ettt 12,281 6 12,287
Stonington Harbor management .. 300 300
BOE fleX aCCOUNL. .......c.ccureruriereceteciereneesevener e erenean 42,935 99,299 99,465 42,769
TOTAL CASH ..ottt e e et e e et e 364,143 1,040,068 1,055,260 348,951
INVESTMENTS:
Tax sale ESCrOW....cuiciiinreiciiriene st ce e 79,335 111 79,446
DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS:
Stonington Harbor management ..........c.ooverrerereesirenerennnns 33,894 8,620 18,792 23,722
Mystic Harbor management............cecerereiveervveinnnvenivererenns 10,334 4,125 4,331 10,628
TOTAL DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS..........cooi v 44,728 12,745 23,123 34,350
TOTAL ASSETS ... i ettt et e e e e e $ 488,206 $ 1,052,924 $ 1,078,383 $ 462,747
LIABILITIES
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE:
Student ACHVILY....c.ovvvinvreririererir s ssrsae e $ 308,927 $ 940,463 $ 955,795 $ 293,595
TaxX SAlE SCTOW.....eciiiieiiierieriaeecrerierieesae s crseeceveeeraenes 91,616 117 91,733
Stonington Harbor management ...........oc.ocveiveeeneeeinnnns 33,894 8,920 18,792 24,022
Mystic Harbor management..........c..ocoocevuereerevnveneenennerinns 10,834 4,125 4,331 10,628
BOE fleX 8CC0UNL.......ccviierieeinrenire s sre e vrerennes 42,935 99,299 99,465 42,769
TOTAL ACCOUNTS PAYABLE... ... oo e e 3 488,206 $ 1,052,924 $§  1,078383 $ 462,747
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TOWN OF STONINGTON, CONNECTICUT

TABLE 1

NET ASSETS BY COMPONENT
LAST NINE YEARS
(UNAUDITED)
FISCAL YEAR
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(As Restated)
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt..... $ 88,872,739 $ 86,773,619 $ 83,778472 $ 79,816,672 $76,810,058  $40,388,037 $ 42,545 669 $77,574,571 $59,840,525
Restricted for:
Public safety.......ccocoeiiiiiiiiiiians 6,248
Highway department..............cccccovuiiiinnes 103,222
Sanitation and waste removal.................... 88,972
Human services.................. 4,525
Education........ 147,265
Unrestricted........eoeiieiiiniiiniiiiiaeieneciee 18,794,839 16,990,964 16,625,138 16,764,899 15,376,694 10,068,986 2,040,008 (4,377,952) 9,903,143
TOTAL NET ASSETS....c.oiiiiiiiiiiiiiciiiaee $108,017,810 $103,764,583 $100,403,610 $ 96581571 $92,186,752 $50,457,023 $44,585,677 $73,196619 $69,743,668




TABLE 2

TOWN OF STONINGTON. CONNECTICUT
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
LAST NINE YEARS
(UNAUDITED)
FISCAL YEAR
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
EXPENSES:
General government....................... $ 5,760,338 $ 8,017,134 $ 7,022,960 $ 8,237,984 $ 4,971,379 $ 5,753,136 $ 5,255,537 $ 5,340,934 $ 4,875,183
Public safety.......ccccooooiiviiinnien e 5,315,579 4,169,223 4,478,444 -3,800,209 3,870,184 3,856,009 4,025,412 3,796,997 4,059,715
Public works... .......cooi v 3,643,021 3,083,424 2,537,942 2,777,352 2,122,313 2,501,400 2,187,644 2,190,601 2,870,574
Sanitation and waste removal............ 5,773,771 5,178,102 5,504,529 6,124,733 5,612,727 5,904,320 6,637,167 6,990,304 5,078,077
Health and welfare........................ 803,803 343,692 581,805 672,159 658,744 659,279 458,300 563,998 807,174
Library... oo coe e e e 269,810 189,979 450,316 267,159 267,159 249,159 226,659 229,159 250,159
Recreation.........ccoeeevee i ceecen et 225,268 183,653 153,603 128,473 128,940 114,811 97,177 91,674 109,160
Education.............cooev i ien i e 36,114,479 36,917,998 35,561,107 33,693,404 33,495,682 30,644,301 25,659,084 27,305,037 31,114,535
Interest €Xpense. .. ... ..o cvvver s cee cee e 907,607 1,439,712 2,191,807 1,770,955 1,544,780 1,913,522 1,212,441 1,087,788 1,856,272
TOTAL EXPENSES... ... oo eeeeee s 58,813,676 59,522917 58,482,513 57,472,428 52,671,908 51,595,937 45,759,421 47,596,492 51,020,849
PROGRAM REVENUES:
Charges for services:
General government....................... 741,220 803,809 597,524 968,032 960,447 1,227,325 1,455,818 1,210,692 1,246,672
Public safety........cccooei v iiiien e e, 98,889 286,534 184,482 60,581 51,057 44271 61,888 49,878 40,955
Public WOrks... ... .. cee v ivrie e eeeenns 204,970 256,784 429,827 2,517,134 2,371,438 2,337,035 1,205,263 2,438,145 2,285,716
Sanitation and waste removal............ 4,384,108 2,189,143 4,313,708 2,426,694 1,807,170 2,035,506 1,592,512 1,524,597 1,930,327
Health and welfare........................ 78,270 33,825 21,988 5,747 1,035 10,447 12,822 22972
Library.......oocoe e 25,385 5,575
Recreation... .......ccooevvii i cercee e 103,883 19,328 95,559 124,812 84,924 49,089 15,393 14,650 46,112
Education.............coceeieeveeoer e 646,736 2,308,078 678,522 710,631 735,093 714,953 616,829 663,503 694,596
Operating grants and contributions... .... 6,795,674 7,386,033 7,086,405 7,019,039 6,590,101 6,155,082 5,375,910 4,383,023 10,239,220
Capital grants and contributions... ... .... 1,560,955 1,937,799 1,228,228 148,937 327,083 1,869,356 916,594 3,798,219 340,296
TOTAL PROGRAM REVENUES........... 14,614,705 15,246,718 14,641,818 13,981,607 12,928,348 14,432,617 11,250,654 14,095,529 16,846,866
NET EXPENSES:
Govermmental activities................... (44,198,971 (44,276,199) (43,840,695) (43,490,821) (39,743,560) (37,163,320) (34,508,767) (33,500,963) (34,173,983)
GENERAL REVENUES:
Property taXxes.......c.coeeneeeven eeneen s 48,620,326 47,505,735 47,149,126 46,834,683 44,062,398 41,874,197 35,030,427 36,737,170 38,568,533
Investment income.............coeee e 196,671 222,137 408,849 962,047 1,289,267 900,590 286,123 215,225 536,448
Miscellaneous.............cc.ccoceeeee e 18,555 441,549 59,729 100,806 262,618 410,855 139,227 3,800 243,051
Transfers.........ooocee i iei i (383,354)
TOTAL GENERAL REVENUES............ 48,452,198 48,169,421 47,617,704 47,897,536 45,614,283 43,185,642 35,455,777 36,956,195 39,348,032

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS................. $ 4,253,227 $ 3,893,222 $ 3,777,009 $ 4,406,715 $ 5,870,723 $ 6,022,322 $ 947,010 $ 3,455,232 $ 5,174,049




TABLE 3

TOWN OF STONINGTON, CONNECTICUT

SCHEDULE OF DEBT LIMITATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
(UNAUDITED)

Total tax collections (including interest and lien fees) for current year.............c.ooovvveiivniiriiiinineeeieeiineeenn $ 48,469,614

Total tax collections (including interest and lien fees of city, borough and all other taxing

districts within the Town) for the CUITENt Year. ... ..ottt e e e e 3,893,885
Reimbursement for revenue loss on;
Tax relief for elderly freeze. .. ... ...iii i e e e e 8,984
BASE FOR DEBT LIMITATION COMPUTATION ...ttt e tee e eee e e veneae e $ 52,372,483
GENERAL URBAN PENSION
DEBT LIMITATION: PURPOSES SCHOOLS SEWERS RENEWAL DEFICIT
2 1/4times base. ........ooviieiieieee e $ 117,838,086 $ $ $ $
4 1/2 tmes base.......oe i e 235,676,173
33/4 tMes base......oc.vvvneeiiriie e 196,396,811
3 1/4times base.......coevviiviiniin e 170,210,569
3 HmMes base..........oviviiiiiiiee e 157,117,449
TOTAL DEBT LIMITATION..........coceovvivnnnn. 117,838,086 235,676,173 196,396,811 170,210,569 157,117,449
INDEBTEDNESS:
Bonds payable..........c.coooeeiiiiiiii 4,019,700 23,975,300 2,245,000
Fire District Debt.........cooovviiiviiiiiiiii 3,751,631
Authorized and unissued.................oooiviiinn.nn. 18,325,000
NET INDEBTEDNESS (1)...voiiviiiii i, 7,771,331 23,975,300 20,570,000 - -
DEBT LIMITATION IN EXCESS OF
OUTSTANDING AND AUTHORIZED DEBT..... $§ 110,066,755 $ 211,700,873 $ 175,826,811 $ 170,210,569 §$ 157,117,449
NOTES:
(1) The total of the above net indebtedness amounts to: $ 52,316,631
In no event shall total indebtedness exceed seven times the base for debt limitation computation: $ 366,607,380
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TOWN OF STONINGTON, CONNECTICUT

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

FEDERAL STATE
CFDA PROJECT
FEDERAL GRANTOR/PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/ NUMBER NUMBER EXPENDITURES
PROGRAM TITLE
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
Passed through State Department of Education:
School Lunch - Cluster:
School Breakfast Program 10,553 12060-20508-82079-170005 $ 40,186
National School Lunch Program- Cash. 10.555 12060-20560-80279-170005 185,320
National School Lunch Program- Commodities 10.555 12060-20560-80279-170006 52,795
Special Milk Program for Children 10.556 12060-20500-82079-170005 1,571
Surnmer Food Service Program for Children 10.559 12060-22051-82079-170005 17,985
Total School Lunch - CIUStEr.............iiuiiiiiiiiiiii i e e 297,857
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT
Passed through State Department of Economic and Community
Development:
Economic Development Initiative PIOSIAM..............coooviiiiiiiiiieiie et e e 14.251 94,608
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
Passed through State Department of Policy and Management
ARRA - JUSHCE ASSISTANCE GIANE. ...\ vt iesi it et et eer e riteeeiaiaestaateentaasanaeeeascrtne s ranaeenens 16.738 7,500
Bulletproof Vest Partnership PIOBIAIT. ... ..oeueeeitiiniee ettt et intiesiiesesstneeerenses e raeeeteee e eeneaenen 16.607 9,000
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE.......cooviiuiiiiiiiiiiiiiniis oo s 16,500
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
Passed through State Department of T ransportation:
Highway - Cluster:
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 12602-DOT57151-22108 533,467
ARRA - Highway Planning and Construction. 20.205 12602-DOT57151-29017 523,866
Total HIghway - CHISTEL. .. ...uuiieiit ittt et e e e e e e rea o 1,057,333
Alcohol Open Container.... 20.607 2,816
OCEUPANE PIOTECHONL. ...ttt it ettt et et s e e e 20.602 11,551
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION.......oouuiiiiiiiiiiniiii i 1,071,700
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
Passed through State Department of Education:
Title! - Cluster:
Title I Grants to Local Educational A 84.010 12060-20679-82070-2010-170002-SDE0000S 13,556
Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies. 84.010 12060-20679-82070-2011-170002-SDE0000S 91,735
Total - Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010 12060-9010-82070-2009-170002 105,291
ARRA - Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencie: 84.389 12060-9010-82070-2009-170002 28,698
Total THle T - CIUSIET. .. ...oiiviti et ittt e 133,989
Special Education - Cluster:
Special Education - Grants to States (IDEA, Part B) 84,027 12060-20977-82032-2011-170002 455,397
Special Education - Grants to States (IDEA, Part B) 84.027 12060-20977-82032-2010-170002 22,124
Total Special Education - Grants to States (IDEA, Part B). 84.027 477,521
Special Education - Preschool Grants (IDEA Preschool). 84,173 12060-20983-82032-2011-170002 12,665
ARRA - Special Education - Grants to States (IDEA, Part B), Recovery Act. 84.391 12060-29011-82032-2009-170002 260,021
ARRA - Special Education - Preschool Grants (IDEA Preschool), Recovery Act..........cooreommmeonreomernersns 84,392 12060-29012-82032-2009-170002 10,782
Total Special Education - CRISIET. ...........uuiuiiiiiiiiiitiiiiriit sttt ace s e a e 760,989
Career and Technical Education - Basic Grants to State 84.048 12060-20742-84010-2011-170002 21,832
Safe and Drug-Free Schools and Communities - State Grant 84,186 12060-20873-84131-2010-170002 3,603
ARRA - Education Technology State Grants.............covervrieiiiiurioniininernsoeireneseessrireeee eeeesennes 84.386 12060-29063-82079-2009-170002 350
Improving Teacher Quality State Grants... 84.367 12060-20858-84131-2011-170002 58,399
Improving Teacher Quality State Grants... 84.367 12060-20858-84131-2010-170002 9,041
Total Improving Teacher Quality State GIaNtS..............vuveveriieruintiierrerrerereeereereeirerreerersis e 84.367

See notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
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TOWN OF STONINGTON, CONNECTICUT

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

FEDERAL STATE
CFDA PROJECT
FEDERAL GRANTOR/PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/ NUMBER NUMBER EXPENDITURES
PROGRAM TITLE
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION (CONTINUED)
State Fiscal Stabilization Fund (SFSF) - Cluster:
ARRA - State Fiscal Stabilization Fund (SFSF) - Education State Grants, Recovery Act...................... 84,394 12060-29053-2011-82010-170002 $ 189,552
ARRA - State Fiscal Stabilization Fund (SFSF) - Government Services, Recovery Act........................ 84.397 12060-29054-2009-82016-170002 104,510
Total State Fiscal Stabilization (SFSF) - CIUSter...........cooiiiiiiiiiiiii s 294,062
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 1,282,265
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY
Passed through State Emergency Management & Homeland Security:
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance (Presidentially Declared Disasters). .. 97.036 119,348
Passed through State of Connecticut Military Department:
Emergency Management Performance Grants... 97,042 1260-EHS99660-21881 8,131

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY

TOTAL FEDERAL AWARDS

See notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
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TOWN OF STONINGTON, CONNECTICUT

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY

The accounting policies of the Town of Stonington, Connecticut, conform to accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.
The following is the significant policy relating to Federal awards:

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented on the modified accrual basis of
accounting and a current financial resources measurement focus. The information in this schedule is presented
in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-
Profit Organizations.

2. NONCASH FEDERAL AWARDS

The Town received and expended $52,795 of USDA donated commodities under the National School Lunch
Program.
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TOWN OF STONINGTON, CONNECTICUT

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings

¢ There were no prior year audit findings or questioned costs.
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TOWN OF STONINGTON, CONNECTICUT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS

Financial Statements

Type of auditors’ report issued: Unqualified

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified? yes X__Nno
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes X__none reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? yes X _no
Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified yes X__no
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes X __none reported

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance
for major programs: Unqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with
Circular A-133, Section .510(a)? yes X __no

Identification of major programs:

CFDA NUMBER NAME OF FEDERAL PROGRAM

20.205 Highway Cluster
84.027/84.173/84.391/84.392  Special Education Cluster

Dollar threshold used to distinguish
between Type A and Type B programs: $ 300,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X__yes no

SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

None

SECTION III - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

There were no findings or questioned costs related to the Federal Awards programs.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Finance
Town of Stonington, Connecticut

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Stonington, Connecticut, as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the Town's basic financial statements, and have issued
our report thereon dated December 29, 2011. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial

audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Town’s internal control over financial reporting
as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town’s
internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Town’s internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination
of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did

not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above.
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Town of Stonington, Connecticut
Page Two

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of the Town in a separate letter dated
December 29, 2011.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of Finance, others
within the entity, Federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

9' // /z ,{7,4_, , [ LA

New London, Connecticut
December 29, 2011
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS ON COMPLIANCE WITH
REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT
ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Board of Finance
Town of Stonington, Connecticut

Compliance

We have audited the Town of Stonington, Connecticut’s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and
material effect on each of the Town’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2011. The
Town’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the

Town’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Town’s compliance based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a
major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Town’s
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in
the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does
not provide a legal determination on the Town’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the Town complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to

above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year
ended June 30, 2011.

Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Town is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Town’s internal control over
compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
to determine the auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town’s internal control over compliance.
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Town of Stonington, Connecticut
Page Two

Internal Control Over Compliance (Continued)

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not identify

any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined
above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of Finance, others
within the entity, Federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

y. Y Ooh, LLP

New London, Connecticut
December 29, 2011
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TOWN OF STONINGTON, CONNECTICUT

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

STATE GRANTOR/PASS-THROUGH
GRANTOR/PROGRAM TITLE

STATE GRANT PROGRAM

CORE-CT NUMBER

EXPENDITURES

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION:
AU EQUCAHION.......vovenireieeistree et ens s scebessrss s s sssas st e et sesnssassesssssssesesesen
Health Services..........
Youth Services BUTBAU.......ccueviriciririiiirieeiicceeereere st es e sae e
MaGNEt SCHOOIS. .. ..viriereeeiiiiree ettt b et s sttt sa e
Youth Services Enhancement Grant...
Child Nutrition State Matching Grant .
Healthy Foods INtative........c.cooriieiiiiics s

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION:
Town Aid Road Grants Transportation Fund
Town Aid Road Grants Transportation Fund,

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIROMENTAL PROTECTION:
Small Town Economic Assistance Program (STEAP)...............coeiiiininn.
Pawcatuck Dock.......ooiviiiiiii

OFFICE OF POLICY AND MANAGEMENT:
Property Tax Relief for Disabled............cccnuvmnivcnniinciiiince s
Property Tax Relief for Elderly and Totally Disabled Homeowners
Property Tax Relief for Elderly Homeowners - Freeze Program.... .
Property Tax Relief for Veterans.............cccoovievnininiinnincieinns
Property Tax Relief for Manufacturing Machinery Equipment
and Commercial VEhicles...........c.oviiviiiiiiiiiiiiiii e

STATE COMPTROLLER:
Payment in Lieu of Taxes (PILOT) on State-Owned Property..............c.cevuve.
BOAE GTANL.....coviiririirertcner ettt n et s sersasassm s ere b sbenenenebebenennen

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY:
Telecommunications Fund...............oiiiiiiiiiniii e

CONNECTICUT STATE LIBRARY:
Historic Documents Preservation Program...............ccooviiviiiiiinnnnn,

TOTAL STATE ASSISTANCE BEFORE EXEMPT PROGRAMS..........cccocvviviinnns

EXEMPT PROGRAMS:

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION:

Transportation of School Children..
Education Cost Sharing...........
Excess Cost - Student Based....
Nonpublic School Transportation.

STATE COMPTROLLER:
Mashantucket Pequot/Mohegan Fund...........coooveiimvcnnncnnennc e

TOTAL EXEMPT PROGRAMS

11000-SDE64000-17030
11000-SDE64000-17034
11000-SDE64000-17052
11000-SDE64000-17057
11000-SDE64000-16201
11000-SDE64000-16211
11000-SDE64370-16212

12052-DOT57000-43455
13033-DOT57000-43459

12052-DEP43153-45031
12052-DEP43750-43159

11000-OPM20600-17011
11000-OPM20600-17018
11000-OPM20600-17021
11000-OPM20600-17024

11000-OPM20600-17031

11000-0OSC15910-17004
12027-0SC15910-40211

12060-DPS32740-35190

12060-CSL66091-35150

11000-SDE64000-17027
11000-SDE64000-17041
11000-SDE64000-17047
11000-SDE64000-17049

12009-08C15910-17005

See notes to Schedule of Expenditures of State Financial Assistance
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$ 16,473
9,042

19,284

41,600

7,731

10,193

22,214

39,866
109,632

107,692
14,314

1,591
121,850
8,984
16,053

80,628

21,107
68,922

36,969

3,000

757,145

34,142
1,747,912
670,606
3,056

34,001

2,489,717
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TOWN OF STONINGTON, CONNECTICUT

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Various departments and agencies of the State of Connecticut have provided financial assistance to the Town of
Stonington through grants and other authorizations in accordance with the General Statutes of the State of
Connecticut. These financial assistance programs fund several programs including general government,
education, public safety, public works, sanitation, and social services.

L

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of the Town of Stonington, Connecticut, conform to accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.
The following is the significant policy relating to State financial assistance:

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of State Financial Assistance is presented on the modified
accrual basis of accounting and a current financial resources measurement focus.

The Schedule of Expenditures of State Financial Assistance, contained in this report, is prepared based on
regulations established by the State of Connecticut Office of Policy and Management. In accordance with
these regulations (Section 4-236-22), certain grants are not dependent on expenditure activity and,
accordingly, are considered to be expended in the fiscal year of receipt. These grant program receipts are
reflected in the expenditures column of the Schedule of Expenditures of State Financial Assistance.

LOAN PROGRAM

In accordance with Section 4-236-23(a)(4)(F) of the Regulations to the State Single Audit Act, the notes to
the Schedule of Expenditures of State Financial Assistance shall include loans and loan activities. The
following is a summary of the loan program activity for the year ended June 30, 2011.

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION:

Clean Water Funds 21014-OTT14230-4001:

Issue Interest Original Balance Balance
Date Rate Amount July 1, 2010 Retired June 30, 2011
1991 2.0% $ 2,517,660 $ 125,882 $ 125882 § -
1998 2.0% 1,563,519 526,081 75,156 450,925
06/30/00 2.0% 1,148,280 519,984 69,946 450,038

$ 1,171,947 § 270984 § 900,963
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TOWN OF STONINGTON, CONNECTICUT

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

There were no prior year audit findings or questioned costs.
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TOWN OF STONINGTON, CONNECTICUT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

L. SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

Financial Statements

Type of auditors’ report issued: Ungqualified

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified? yes no
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? yes no
State Financial Assistance
Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified yes no
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes
Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance
for major programs: Ungqualified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with Section
4-236-24 of the Regulations of the
State Single Audit Act? yes no

The following schedule reflects the major programs included in the audit:

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs
State Grantor and Program
OFFICE OF POLICY AND MANAGEMENT:

Property Tax Relief for Elderly and Totally
Disabled Homeowners

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIROMENTAL PROTECTION:
Small Town Economic Assistance
Program (STEAP)

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION:
Town Aid Road Grants Transportation Fund
Town Aid Road Grants Transportation Fund

99

12052-DEP43153-45031

Core-CT Number

11000-OPM20600-17018

13033-DOT57000-43459
12052-DOT57000-43455

none reported

none reported

$100,000

Expenditures

$ 121,850

§ 107,692

$ 109,632
$ 39,866



TOWN OF STONINGTON, CONNECTICUT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

II. FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

There were no findings reported relating to the Town’s financial statements.

II. STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

No findings or questioned costs are reported relating to State Financial Assistance programs.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Finance
Town of Stonington, Connecticut

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Stonington, Connecticut, as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the Town's basic financial statements and have issued
our report thereon dated December 29, 2011. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial

audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Town’s internal control over financial reporting
as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town’s

internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Town’s internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination
of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did

not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above.
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Town of Stonington, Connecticut
Page Two

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of the Town in a separate letter dated
December 29, 2011.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of Finance, others
within the entity, Office of Policy and Management, State awarding agencies and pass-through entities
and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

g- U ol L0

New London, Connecticut
December 29, 2011
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS ON COMPLIANCE WITH
REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT
ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE STATE SINGLE AUDIT ACT

Board of Finance
Town of Stonington, Connecticut

Compliance

We have audited the Town of Stonington, Connecticut’s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the Office of Policy and Management Compliance Supplement that could have a
direct and material effect on each of the Town’s major state programs for the year ended June 30, 2011.
The major state programs are identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts
and grants applicable to each of its major state programs is the responsibility of the Town’s management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Town’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the State Single Audit Act (C.G.S.
Sections 4-230 to 4-236). Those standards and the State Single Audit Act require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major state program
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Town’s compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal
determination on the Town’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the Town complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to

above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major state programs for the year ended
June 30, 2011.

Internal Control over Compliance

Management of the Town is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to state programs.
In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Town’s internal control over compliance with
the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major state program to determine the
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with the State Single Audit Act, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town’s internal control over compliance.
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Internal Control Over Compliance (Continued)

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state
program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility
that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined
above

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of Finance, others

within the entity, Office of Policy and Management, State awarding agencies and pass-through entities
and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

g/J (’:‘f’/é«, LLA

New London, Connecticut
December 29, 2011
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